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BUSINESS OUTLOOK
The Group has started 2011 in a positive position.
The balance sheet is strong, the portfolio has
significant opportunities to add value and we have a
team in place to capitalise on those opportunities.
The markets in which we operate are stable and, in
the case of Germany, much improved. There are also
initial signs in 2011 of a continuation of this trend
and possible upward turn in occupier demand in
other countries as well.

Hansteen Holdings PLC is a
European REIT that invests in
predominantly industrial
properties in continental Europe
and the UK with high yields,
low !nancing costs and
opportunity for value
improvement.

Our Business at a Glance

April
Hansteen completed a
successful secondary
placing for an
additional £70 million.

July
66 properties acquired
in 37 transactions
totalling !300 million.

2007

July
Hansteen buys 
!36.2 million and 
sells !31.8 million.

2008

July
Share Issue raised
gross proceeds of
£200.8 million in
successful placing and
open offer.

August
Launch of the
Hansteen UK Industrial
Property Unit Trust with
five institutional
investors.

October
Hansteen moves from
AIM to the Official List
and becomes a REIT.

2009

March
Acquisition of German
industrial property portfolio
for !330 million.

April
Hansteen returns to the UK
with acquisition of Kilmartin
portfolio for £80.4 million.

October
Board strengthened with
the addition of two Non-
Executive Directors and
Finance Director.

December
Acquisition of Saltley
Business Park and
Treforest Industrial Estate.

2010

March
Hansteen becomes a
member of FTSE 250
and EPRA Index.

2011

Our Milestones
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Hansteen Holdings PLC is
a property company formed
by Morgan Jones and Ian
Watson.

“Due to our
opportunistic
buying and intensive
management
approach, we are
con!dent of a
continuing strong
income return 
from the portfolio.”
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“"e acquisitions in
2010 have achieved
excellent returns on
the capital invested
with a genuine
prospect of this
continuing over the
project lifetime.”

Property Portfolio

£829m

Dividend 
per Share

3.5p

Normalised Pro!t

£24.0m

Pre-tax Pro!t

£33.2m

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Normalised profit increased by 56% to £24.0 million 
(2009: £15.4 million) *.

Pre-tax profit £33.2 million (2009: loss £21.3 million).

Annual dividends increased 9% to 3.5p (2009: 3.2p).

Diluted EPRA NAV per share up 2.5% to 86p ** 
(2009: 84p). -IFRS NAV per share 84p (2009:84p).

Entered FTSE 250 and EPRA Index in March 2011.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
Net occupancy during the year improved by 19,000 sq m
(approximately 1% in the year).
-H2 occupancy significantly improved on H1***. 
(H2 86,000 sq m gain/H1 67,000 sq m loss).

£460 million properties acquired and £47 million properties
sold during the year. 

First significant UK acquisitions.

Property portfolio increased by 97% to £829 million 
(2009: £421 million).

HPUT – approximately £84 million of equity invested in
eight acquisitions.

Hansteen Holdings PLC 
Results 2010

* Normalised profit represents a pre-
tax profit excluding gains and
losses on investment properties,
profit on sale of subsidiaries and
available for sale investments,
movement in foreign currency and
interest rate derivatives and
negative goodwill and related costs
arising on acquisitions of
subsidiaries.

** December 2010 NAV per share was
achieved after deducting dividends
related to 2009 and 2010 amounting
in total to 4.6p per share.

*** H1 numbers are unaudited.
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GERMANY
£491m

87 properties

THE NETHERLANDS
£146m

33 properties

BELGIUM
£34m

13 properties

FRANCE
£17m

4 properties

LOCATION OF PROPERTIES
Hansteen has invested in a range of industrial properties located across Europe including
United Kingdom, Germany, The Netherlands, France and Belgium

The Netherlands

Belgium

Germany

France

Our Portfolio

UNITED KINGDOM
£141m*

57 properties*

*Including HPUT

United Kingdom
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Chairman’s Statement

RESULTS
Profit before tax for the year to 31
December 2010 improved
significantly to £33.2 million from a
£21.3 million loss in 2009.
Normalised profit, which excludes
revaluations and certain one-off
items increased to £24.0 million
compared to £15.4 million in 2009,
an increase of 56%.

NET ASSET VALUE
Net Asset Value (‘NAV’) per share
calculated on a diluted EPRA basis
as at 31 December 2010 was 86p
per share compared to 80p per
share at 30 June 2010 (unaudited)
and 84p per share at 31 December
2009. The 2010 NAV per share was
achieved after deducting an
additional dividend as we
introduced two payments per year
(in total 4.6p per share was paid
during the year), and after adverse
currency movements of 1.8p per
share. After adjusting for these
items the total underlying growth in
the year is 8.4p per share or 10%.

DIVIDEND
In past years, Hansteen has paid a
single dividend. As noted above, in
2010 the Board decided to divide
the dividend into two payments.
The first dividend relating to the 

financial year 2010 of 1.4p per
share, including a PID of 0.56p,
was paid on 25 November 2010. A
second dividend of 2.1p per share,
including a PID of 1.24p, will be
paid on 26 May 2011 to
shareholders on the register at
close of business on 3 May 2011.
The total dividend of 3.5p per
share is a 9% increase on 2009
notwithstanding the increase in the
capital base. The Board remains
committed to a prudently
progressive dividend policy
reflecting the strong and growing
cash flow generated by the
business.

PROPERTY
PORTFOLIO
During 2010, the Group made a
number of excellent purchases all
at prices which reflected the
distress in the sector and which we
believe will produce strong returns
in the coming years. The Group
invested approximately £460
million in ten transactions of which
£289 million was in Germany and
£171 million in the UK, including
£84 million invested by the HPUT.
Over the same period the Group
sold £47 million of properties at an
average premium of 20% to the
book value.

James Hambro
Chairman

In 2009, the Board expected the downturn in the property
markets would give rise to some attractive acquisition
opportunities. We decided to create a war chest by raising
additional equity and debt facilities to take advantage of the
market malaise, and the resulting purchases made during 2010
have shown that this policy was justified. 2010 was a year of
significant growth and development in every aspect of the
business; the property portfolio has approximately doubled and
the financial results, the organisation and the prospects have all
made a step change improvement.



Business Overview               Financial Statements           Corporate Governance

5HANSTEEN HOLDINGS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2010

The Group started the year with
153,000 sq m of vacant property
representing 16% of the portfolio,
purchased an additional 346,000
sq m of vacant property during the
year and finished the year with
480,000 sq m of vacant property
representing net occupancy
improvement in the year of 19,000
sq m or 1% of the portfolio. The
improvement was more significant
in the second half as in the first half
occupancy fell by 67,800 sq m but
improved by 87,000 sq m in the
second half.

As at 31 December 2010 the
Group’s wholly owned property
portfolio comprised 1.8 million sq
m (2009: 0.9 million sq m) with a
value of £745 million (2009: £421
million) and a rent roll of £59.6
million (2009: £36.0 million) giving
a yield of 8.0% (2009: 8.6%). There
is a further £3.9 million of rent
which is contracted but not yet
passing either due to rent free
periods, stepped rents or delayed
lease starts. All of this rent will start
to be paid over the next twelve
months.

This high yielding portfolio
produces a robust income surplus
from over 1,700 tenants with
significant room for growth through

letting vacant accommodation, re-
gearing leases, realising the value
of undeveloped land and profitable
sales. The occupancy level is 78%
against 84% in 2009 due to the
policy of buying more highly vacant
properties in 2010. The benefit of
this approach is that if the Group’s
vacant accommodation was let at
current market rents, it would add
approximately £15 million to the
annualised rent roll. The Board
believes that in normal economic
conditions it would be reasonable
to expect the vacancy level to
decrease materially from
December 2010 levels.

HANSTEEN
PROPERTY UNIT
TRUST !HPUT"
In early 2010, Hansteen believed
that UK industrial property was
likely to see a pricing correction
later in the year which would
provide some exciting
opportunities. As a result Hansteen
advised the HPUT not to invest the
fund at prevailing prices at the start
of the year and by the end of June
only 20% of the HPUT’s £90 million
of capital had been deployed.
However, in the second half of
2010 institutional buying activity

“2010 was a year of
signi!cant growth
and development in
every aspect of the
business; the
property portfolio
has approximately
doubled and the
!nancial results, 
the organisation
and the prospects
have all made a 
step change
improvement.”

0.9 milllion sq m

£421m
1.8 million sq m

£745m
Property Portfolio & Value*

2009

2010

£36.0m £59.6m
Rent Roll*

2009

2010

*Wholly owned
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abated, vindicating the approach
Hansteen had advocated and
allowing the HPUT to acquire £84
million of industrial properties
including two substantial estates
which were acquired at less than
half the price paid by the previous
owners.

FINANCE AND
HEDGING
Net debt as at 31 December 2010
was £394 million (2009: £55
million) representing a net debt to
value ratio of 53% (2009: 13%).
Gross borrowings of £264 million
are fixed at an average rate of
2.6% and £150 million are capped
at an average rate of 5.3%. This
means that Hansteen has an
average borrowing rate at 31
December 2010 of 3.3% (2009:
4.3%) which the Board believes to
be amongst the lowest average
borrowing costs in the listed
property sector. Borrowings are in
the same currency as the assets
against which they are secured. All
borrowings are substantially within
their banking covenants and none
of Hansteen’s main banking
facilities require renewal before
June 2013.

Approximately 63% of Hansteen’s
net assets are Euro denominated
with the result that the Sterling
value of its net assets varies with
the movement in the exchange
rate. The Board reviews the most
appropriate policy for managing
this exposure on an ongoing basis.
In July last year the Company
entered into a !200 million three-
year hedge to provide downside
protection should the Euro fall
significantly against Sterling (i.e.
move beyond !1.42 to the £)
whilst at the same time ensuring
that the Group will fully benefit if
the Euro appreciates in value. 

The Board’s policy is to manage
both its Euro revenues and cash
balances to ensure that it always
has adequate Sterling resources to
meet projected dividends for the
next twelve months.

BOARD CHANGES
As a result of the growth of our
business and our move to the
Official List, we decided to expand
the Board. As announced on 18
October 2010, I am delighted that
we have been able to recruit
Richard Cotton and Humphrey
Price as Non-Executive Directors
and that Richard Lowes has been
promoted to Group Finance
Director.

ORGANISATION
Having moved up to the Official
List and converted to a REIT in
October 2009, Hansteen continued
to expand its team and
infrastructure. During 2010 we
moved into permanent London
headquarters and opened small
offices in Leeds, Cardiff, Frankfurt,
Berlin and Amsterdam in addition
to the existing office in Glasgow.
The executive team had grown
from 19 people at 1 October 2009
to 42 people at 31 December 2010.

CURRENT TRADING
AND PROSPECTS
The Group’s focus is on growth in
income, earnings and dividends.
The Board also expects the
portfolio will show capital growth
as the property market continues
to recover. Currently this recovery
is more evident in Germany, where
export led growth in the economy
has been reflected in the
occupancy rates in our portfolio.

Chairman’s Statement

“"e Group’s focus
is on growth in
income, earnings
and dividends. 
"e Board also
expects the
portfolio will 
show capital 
growth as the
property market
continues to
recover.”
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The Group has started 2011 in a
positive position. The balance
sheet is strong, the portfolio has
significant opportunities to add
value and we have a team in place
to capitalise on those
opportunities. The markets in
which we operate are stable and,
in the case of Germany, much
improved. There are also initial
signs in 2011 of a continuation of
this trend and possible upward
turn in occupier demand in other
countries as well.

In March of this year, Hansteen
became a member of the FTSE
250 and also of the EPRA index.
Both are significant milestones in
the business’s growth.

Throughout Europe there are
substantial pools of properties and
property owners that are facing
significant challenges. Many of
these are the sectors in which
Hansteen specialises: high
yielding, management intensive
properties with vacancies.
Increasingly, it is becoming clear
that the management of these
properties is deteriorating as the
owners lose any economic interest
in the equity and bank finance is
underwater or fast approaching the
redemption date with little
prospect of being renewed.

The driver behind four out of five of
the Group’s major purchases
during 2010 was a bank seeking to
resolve an impaired loan. This
enabled the Group to buy
properties which fitted its
acquisition criteria in terms of
yields, vacancy, rent levels and
capital values. To date the
acquisitions in 2010 have achieved
excellent returns on the capital
invested with a genuine prospect
of this continuing over the project
lifetime.

The appetite of banks to lend on
secondary property is currently
very limited. Such finance is
available only at very modest loan-
to-value ratios and with substantial
margins and then only if
management can demonstrate a
strong, proven track record.
Undoubtedly, for the next couple of
years at least, access to capital
and management expertise will be
the key to exploiting the
opportunities which will arise. The
Board believes that Hansteen is
well placed in both these respects.

James Hambro
Chairman
22 March 2011

Braunschweig, Germany

Phlox, Belgium
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Morgan Jones and Ian Watson, Joint Chief Executives
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Joint Chief Executives’ Review

2010 was an active and successful year for Hansteen. Last year, in a market with a perceived
shortage of opportunities, the Group managed to identify and execute five significant acquisitions
at beneficial prices with opportunities to add value. Four of these opportunities were driven by a
bank seeking to resolve an impaired loan. The Group had been tracking the larger two of these
acquisitions for many months prior to agreeing terms and the Directors believe that, in tandem
with our reputation for swift and straight-forward performance, it was the fact that we had capital
available that enabled us to finally crystallise these situations. We are of the view that there will
continue to be similar excellent opportunities in 2011/12.

The first major purchase in the year
was that of the HBI Portfolio in
Germany. The portfolio was
acquired in April 2010 and, despite
very challenging management
issues, we have achieved
annualised income returns in
excess of 10% per annum and
total returns in excess of 20% per
annum on our capital invested.

The next two major purchases
were the Kilmartin portfolios
acquired from distressed sellers.
Again, the portfolios had enormous
management challenges and little
existing rental income.
Nevertheless there is a slender
income surplus and total
annualised returns, including sales
and revaluation, are running at in
excess of 15%. 

During the year there were also two
further significant acquisitions
undertaken in the year for the
Hansteen UK Industrial Property
Unit Trust (HPUT). These were at
the Treforest Industrial Estate in
Cardiff and Saltley Business Park in
Birmingham. The purchases were
completed at the end of December
and to date the performance of
these properties has been very
encouraging. 

MARKET
BACKGROUND
The occupational market during the
first half of 2010 was very tough
across our areas of activity as
occupiers came to terms with the
very harsh economic environment.
During the second half of the year,
however, we saw a significant
improvement in occupier
confidence in Germany, the country
in which we have 66% of our
wholly owned portfolio, our largest
exposure to any single country.
This confidence has started to
translate into increased occupancy
and as 2011 begins, we believe
that the markets in the Netherlands
and the UK have now also begun
to stabilise and for well priced
properties, there are growing
enquires for new space. 

Alongside this economic picture,
however, is continuing distress in
the secondary property market.
Many banks still have outstanding
loans to properties in our sector
which are either greater than the
underlying property value or
significantly above the level the
banks wish them to be at. In
addition, there is often little
prospect of the current owners
solving the problem. 

At the same time, new bank
lending for secondary property is
extremely limited and if it is
available, it is only to financially
stable businesses with good
reputations and at significantly
lower levels and higher costs
compared with loans currently
held. Banks will therefore be
significant sellers for the
foreseeable future and competition
to buy should be limited. 

We believe we have a good
relationship with a number of
banks, as illustrated by the
transactions in 2010, which will
help us to make further
acquisitions in 2011 and 2012.
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Joint Chief Executives’ Review

PROPERTY PORTFOLIO
During 2010, the property portfolio has approximately doubled in size and significantly the year marked our
return to investing in the UK. We set out below a table summarising the portfolio at 31 December 2010 followed
by a country by country review of performance in the year. 

HANSTEEN PROPERTY PORTFOLIO: 
Summary as at 31 December 2010

Number of Built Area Vacant Passing Rent Value Yield
properties sq m Area Euros Sterling Euros Sterling

!m £m !m £m

UK 46 49,499 41% 3.80 3.26 66 57 5.8%

Germany 87 1,293,601 20% 48.76 41.78 573 491 8.5%

The Netherlands 33 369,056 27% 12.31 10.54 170 146 7.2%

Belgium 13 49,973 23% 3.23 2.76 40 34 8.1%

France 4 79,042 29% 1.43 1.23 20 17 7.2%

Total wholly owned 183 1,841,171 22% 69.53 59.58 869 745 8.0%

HPUT 11 223,412 32% 7.89 6.76 98 84 8.0%

Total 194 2,064,583 23% 77.42 66.34 967 829 8.0%
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UK REVIEW 2010
We opened 2010 owning no
industrial properties in the UK
either on the balance sheet or in
the HPUT. A year ago we were
predicting that opportunities would
emerge in the UK as banks took
control of properties from
borrowers. Our challenge centred
on when to deploy our equity and
to ensure that we purchased
opportunities which were priced
correctly and offered both an
immediate high income return with
medium to long-term capital
growth prospects. 

We closed 2010 having transacted
£217 million of deals in the UK.
This represented £171 million of
acquisitions and £46 million of
sales spread across the Hansteen
balance sheet and the HPUT.

The defining deals completed on
balance sheet were two
acquisitions of assets from the
Kilmartin Group which was in
receivership. The two deals cost a
total of £96.5 million and
comprised 74 small properties
spread throughout the UK. In both
deals exchange of contracts was
achieved within 15 working days of
agreeing heads of terms and
completion followed within a few
weeks excepting those properties
which required landlords’
consents. By the end of the year,
25 of these properties had been
sold for a consideration of £42.6
million which was at or above
acquisition cost. This left a built
portfolio of £40 million yielding
8.0% with 40.6% vacant by floor
area, six development land sites 

totalling 234 hectares held at £11.7
million and 17 newly developed
apartments held at £1.6 million. 

The HPUT, of which Hansteen is
the largest investor (33%) and
asset manager, drew down the
second tranche of equity on 14
January 2010 and purchased its
first property in April. At the end of
the year it had invested £84 million
of its £90 million equity base; £52
million of which was allocated in
the last two weeks of December on
two large acquisitions. These two
cornerstone assets provide the
HPUT with a solid income yield as
well as a wide range of exit
options. 

The first acquisition in December
was Saltley Business Park, a 47
acre industrial site, two miles east
of Birmingham city centre, from
Receivers for £23 million excluding
costs. The estate currently
produces rent of £2.4 million per
annum with 8 vacant units,
equating to 30% of vacancy by
floor area giving a net initial yield of
9.62% with excellent prospects for
growth. 

The second December acquisition
was the Treforest Industrial Estate
in Cardiff which was purchased
from SEGRO. The property is
regarded as the best industrial
location in South Wales comprising
of 124 units across 55 hectares
and currently produces rental
income of £2.8 million per annum.
The purchase price reflects a net
initial yield of 9.94% with around
25% vacant. 

UNITED KINGDOM
£141m*

57 properties*

*Including HPUT

“We closed 2010
having transacted
£217 million of
deals in the UK.
"is represented
£171 million of
acquisitions and
£46 million of sales
spread across the
Hansteen balance
sheet and the
HPUT.”
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Joint Chief Executives’ Review

Our detailed approach to stock
selection and pricing together with
opportunistic sales meant that the
HPUT closed 2010 with a NAV per
unit of £1.005 (£1 par) and in a
position to make distributions in
the second quarter of 2011. 

The HPUT is in the process of
introducing gearing as the equity
has been materially invested;
ultimately it is expected to invest
£180m of combined equity and
debt. 

During the 2011/12 business
planning process the investment
period for the HPUT was extended

from August 2011 to February
2012 to allow it time to take
advantage of the opportunities it
believes will materialise over the
coming year. 

Having successfully performed on
price and to timescale with banks
on all of our acquisitions we
believe that further opportunities
will present themselves through
2011/12.

GERMANY 
!e HBI Portfolio
As at 31 December 2010,
properties owned in the Germany
HBI portfolio amounted to !341.9
million, with a passing rent roll of
!29.5 million and a contracted rent
of !30.9 million; the difference
accounted for by rent free periods
and delayed lease starts. 

With a positive economic outlook
for Germany, demand for ‘value for
money’ industrial accommodation
increased notably during the
second half of 2010. This upswing
in demand and take up conversion
resulted in the vacancy rate for the
portfolio reducing from 24% on
acquisition to 21% by the year
end.

Prior to Hansteen’s ownership, the
portfolio suffered from a lack of
management and a shortage of
capital available to rejuvenate
vacant property and initiate 

marketing campaigns. Hansteen’s
strategy has been to stabilise
passing rent levels by addressing
the operational requirements of the
existing tenants and promoting the
vacant areas on the 34 estates to
new tenants and to facilitate this
we have opened offices in Berlin
and Frankfurt and employed
dynamic, locally based asset
managers to work with our tenants
and external consultants.

Decisive steps were taken to
address historic problem tenants,
which were amassing rental
arrears, impeding operational
efficiency and absorbing
management time. This process
resulted in an initial dip in the
annualised rent roll but as they
have been replaced by solvent
growing occupiers the rent roll has
stabilised and is now growing. 

Key lettings and renewals achieved
in the first nine months included

GERMANY
£491m

87 properties
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the lease renewal of Alcan Singen
GmbH at Gottmadingen for seven
years at !1.5 million per annum.

There were no sales completed in
the period, although there are initial
indications of an increase in
indigenous investor interest for
secondary multi-let industrial
product, a trend we expect to grow
throughout 2011. 

!e Remaining Portfolio 
During 2010 the remaining portfolio
in Germany also benefitted from
the general improvement of the
German economy. As at the year
end, contracted rents increased to
!21.6 million per annum from
!19.9 million at the start of the
year and vacancy decreased from
80,000 sq m to 77,000 sq m, over
the same period.

The relatively small net
improvement in the vacancy rate
over 12 months is a result of the
fact that we witnessed a large
increase of vacant space in the first
half to 112,000 sq m, which we
were able to replace with a number
of significant lettings in the second
half of 2010. This uptake in
demand was seen across all areas
of the portfolio, not just limited to
prime locations.

One of the lettings concluded in
the period was a new 5 year lease
at Willich to ‘Toyo Tyres’ at a rent of
!6/sq m, resulting in full
occupation of the office space in a
building which we had purchased
completely vacant in 2008.

In Ludwigshafen, the main retail
unit of approximately 1,200 sq m
has been let to ‘Istikbal’, the
Turkish furniture retail chain,
leading to a major improvement to
the marketability of the remaining

vacant spaces. Furthermore, the
opening of the adjacent ECE
Shopping Centre has strengthened
the location and desirability of our
property.

Continuing with the success
reported last year, the value of our
Hanau property has further
improved and a 7,000 sq m letting
to the Financial Authorities for 30
months commencing in July 2011
was concluded. The letting
provides the opportunity to fully
refurbish poor quality office space
into a modern specification, and to
achieve a market rent.
Furthermore, we commenced
construction of a 600 space multi-
storey car park at a cost of !3.9m.
This investment will generate a
rental income of approximately
!440,000 pa, when let, which will
assist in unlocking the potential of
the remaining 25,000 sq m vacancy
at this city centre property where
car parking is at a premium.

We sold two very small, and
disproportionately troublesome,
vacant properties in Völklingen and
Hötenslebenat a small loss. In
addition, we notarised the sale of
approximately 51,000 
sq m development land in
Offenburg for a total price of
approximately !4.3 million to a
regional furniture retailer, subject to
receiving planning consent, which
we anticipate will be received in
early 2012.

“With a positive
economic outlook
for Germany,
demand for ‘value
for money’
industrial
accommodation
increased notably
during the second
half of 2010.”
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Joint Chief Executives’ Review

THE NETHERLANDS,
BELGIUM AND
FRANCE
In 2010 the annualised rent roll in
the Netherlands fell from !14.5
million to !12.3 million. Two thirds
of this reduction is attributable to
one bankruptcy at Tilburg and one
lease termination at Amersfoort.
These events also account for the
majority of the increase in the
vacancy from 62,000 sq m to
99,000 sq m. 

There are, however, signs of an
improvement in the market
demand in The Netherlands. The
increase in vacancies either
occurred or the tenants had given
notice in the first half of 2010 and
no further deterioration was
experienced in the second half. In
early 2011 there have been
tentative but encouraging signs of
an upturn in occupier activity and
freehold enquiries are being
successfully pursued. 

In 2010 there was significant
regearing of leases undertaken at
Waalwijk, Dedemsvaart and
Bunschoten where new ten year
leases were agreed and new
leases of over 25,000 sq m at
buildings in Tiel and Tilburg were
achieved albeit on shorter terms. 

In December 2010 we set up an
office based in Amsterdam and
employed a local, full time asset
manager to assist with all aspects
of the operation and marketing of
the portfolio across the Benelux
countries. 

2010 proved to be a stable year for
the portfolio in Belgium with only a
small increase in vacancy due to
lease terminations resulting in a
marginally reduced rent. There
were no sales or acquisitions
during the period.

Our holding in France comprises
only four industrial properties of
which two became vacant during
the year. Marketing has
commenced and there has been
some encouraging interest from
freehold purchasers. 

OUTLOOK
We now have a strong
management team in all our key
regions in Europe. Due to our
opportunistic buying and intensive
management approach, we are
confident of a continuing strong
income return from the portfolio.
Through letting the vacant
properties and utilising our spare
investment capacity, there will also
be opportunities for improving
capital returns. In our view,
Hansteen is well placed to prosper
in the difficult economic
environment. We are looking
forward to another active year in
2011 and growing the business
further with good value
acquisitions. 

Ian Watson and Morgan Jones
Joint Chief Executives
22 March 2011

THE NETHERLANDS
£146m

33 properties

BELGIUM
£34m

13 properties

FRANCE
£17m

4 properties
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Finance Review

NET ASSET VALUE 
At 31 December 2010
shareholders’ funds were £380
million (2009: £380 million). There
are currently 453.6 million shares in
issue and therefore the basic net
asset value amounts to 84p per
share (2009: 84p). On a diluted
EPRA NAV basis this amounts to
86p per share (2009: 84p).

GEARING
The net debt to value at 31
December 2010 was 53%
compared with 13% at 31
December 2009. The increase in
the level of debt was in part due to
the !260 million stapled debt
relating to the purchase of the
former HBI portfolio in April 2010
and the redrawing of !116 million
on the Lloyds Bank facility. As well
as the !11 million available under
our existing facilities, the Group
has available cash resources of
approximately £30 million to invest
in new opportunities.

The Group has increased its
investment in the HPUT from £15
million at 31 December 2009 to £30
million at 31 December 2010. The
HPUT acquired properties to the
value of £84 million during the year

and has capacity to gear up its
equity and invest a further £96
million in new purchases in the UK.

At 31 December 2010 the Group’s
existing bank loan facilities had
!11 million available to draw down
with no restrictions on the use of
those funds. An analysis of those
facilities by provider is set out as
follows:

In Germany and France we have a
Lloyds Bank facility of !150 million.
At 31 December 2010 !139 million
had been drawn; this loan is
available until October 2014 and
has a loan to value covenant of
75% and income cover covenant
of 175%. 

There is also a further facility in
Germany provided by UniCredit
secured on the former HBI
portfolio. The five year loan does
not have any loan to value
covenants for the first year, 95% in
years two and three, 85% in year
four and 75% in year five. The
interest covenant is set at 132% in
year one, 144% in year two and
155% thereafter. The margin on the
loan is 110 basis points.

The Group’s properties in The
Netherlands are financed by a loan
from FGH Bank expiring in June
2013. There is no loan to value
covenant on this loan and the
interest cover covenant is 155%. 

In Belgium there are a series of
mortgages for a total of !19
million, the majority of which are
available for more than five years. 

The covenants on all of the Group’s
loans currently have significant
headroom.

At 31 December 2010 of the
Group’s £458 million borrowings,
58% was fixed at an average rate
of 2.6% with a further 33% capped
at an average of 5.3%. The

weighted average debt maturity at
31 December 2010 was 3.8 years
and the weighted average maturity
of the hedging was 3.7 years. 

CURRENCY
Hansteen reports its results in
Sterling although, at present, the
majority of its investments are
denominated in Euros. The Group’s
investments in Europe are partly
matched with Euro borrowings and
to that extent there is a natural
currency hedge. In order to
mitigate the risk of a substantial fall
in Sterling values due to
devaluation of the Euro against
Sterling, Hansteen entered into a
currency option in July 2010 to
hedge the equity invested in
Europe. The !200 million Euro put
/ Sterling call gives the Group the
right to buy Sterling at a level of
!1.42 to the £ in three years’ time
with Goldman Sachs and Natixis
acting as counterparties. The net
effect of the option is that it
provides a form of downside
protection should there be a
decline in the Euro beyond !1.42
to the £. In this event a substantial
majority of the Group’s net assets
will be protected from the effect of
further falls. The Board will
continue to review the Sterling/
Euro balance of Net Assets and
consider appropriate hedging
strategies from time to time.

SUMMARY
Hansteen begins 2011 with a
strong balance sheet and secure
financing at relatively low interest
rates, the majority of which is fixed
or capped at rates significantly
below the running yield on our
property portfolio.

Richard Lowes
Finance Director
22 March 2011 

Rick Lowes
Finance Director
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Consolidated Income Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2010

                                                                                                                                                               2010                2009
Group                                                                                                                             Note               £’000                £’000

Revenue                                                                                                                                5             67,827             38,885

Cost of sales                                                                                                                         5           (22,011)             (5,540)

Gross profit                                                                                                                          5             45,816             33,345

Other administrative expenses                                                                                                           (9,564)             (6,979)

Negative goodwill recognised on acquisition of subsidiaries                                             31             11,532                       -

Costs relating to acquisition of subsidiaries                                                                       31             (2,724)                       -

Administrative expenses (net)                                                                                                               (756)             (6,979)

Share of results of associates                                                                                             20                  588                (216)

Operating profit before gains/(losses) on investment 
properties and before profit on sale of subsidiaries                                                                           45,648             26,150

Gains/(losses) on investment properties                                                                            10               3,994           (32,512)

Profit on sale of subsidiaries                                                                                                                          -                     24

Operating profit/(loss)                                                                                                                        49,642             (6,338)

Profit on sale of available for sale investment                                                                   21               1,184                       -

(Losses)/gains on foreign currency derivatives                                                                  11             (2,306)                4,532

Finance income                                                                                                                  12                  600                1,049

Finance costs                                                                                                                      12           (13,482)           (11,822)

Change in fair value of interest rate derivatives                                                                12                (293)             (1,017)

Foreign exchange losses                                                                                                     12             (2,162)             (7,704)

Profit/(loss) before tax                                                                                                        6             33,183           (21,300)

Tax                                                                                                                                      13             (2,604)                9,054

Profit/(loss) for the year                                                                                                      8             30,579           (12,246)

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent                                                                                                               30,503           (12,096)

Non-controlling interest                                                                                                                             76                (150)

Profit/(loss) for the year                                                                                                                    30,579           (12,246)

Earnings/(loss) per share

Basic                                                                                                                                   15                 6.7p               (3.9)p

Diluted                                                                                                                                15                 6.7p               (3.9)p

All results derive from continuing operations
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Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2010

                                                                                                                                                               2010                2009
                                                                                                                                                              £’000                £’000

Profit/(loss) for the year after tax                                                                                                       30,579           (12,246)

Other comprehensive income/(expense):

Exchange differences on translating foreign operations                                                                     (7,991)           (15,755)

Translation differences recognised on sale of subsidiaries                                                                            -                  (10)

Movement in fair value of available for sale investment (see note 21)                                              (1,286)                  761

Movement in fair value of available for sale investment 
recycled to profit or loss on disposal                                                                                                     (626)                       -

Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive expense                                                        -                (244)

Total other comprehensive expense for the year, net of income tax                                               (9,903)           (15,248)

Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year                                                                        20,676           (27,494)

                                                                                                                                                                       

Total comprehensive income/(expense) attributable to:

Owners of the parent                                                                                                                          20,621           (27,279)

Non-controlling interest                                                                                                                             55                (215)

                                                                                                                                                            20,676           (27,494)
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Balance Sheets
31 December 2010

                                                                                                                          2010                                       2009
                                                                                                            Group         Company               Group         Company
                                                                                      Note               £’000               £’000                £’000               £’000

Non-current assets                                                                                                                                                                 
Goodwill                                                                            16               1,946                       -                2,004                       -
Property, plant and equipment                                        17                  237                       -                     55                       -
Investment property                                                         18           728,239                       -           417,974                       -
Investment in subsidiary undertakings                              19                       -           212,942                       -           124,641
Investment in associates                                                   20             30,372                       -             14,792                       -
Other investments                                                            21               1,505               1,505                9,511               9,511
Deferred tax asset                                                             29               1,453                  401                1,167                  418
Derivative financial instruments                                       22               2,648               2,341                  163                      6
                                                                                                         766,400           217,189           445,666           134,576

Current assets                                                                                                                                                                         
Trading properties                                                             23             16,397                       -                2,996                       -
Trade and other receivables                                             24             24,110           104,949             11,339           133,631
Cash and cash equivalents                                                25             67,442             47,434           100,970             87,253
Derivative financial instruments                                       22                       -                       -                     53                    53
                                                                                                         107,949           152,383           115,358           220,937
Total assets                                                                                      874,349           369,572           561,024           355,513

Current liabilities                                                                                                                                                                     
Trade and other payables                                                 26           (16,999)           (58,580)             (9,244)           (10,624)
Current tax liabilities                                                                          (2,709)                (352)             (4,906)             (4,316)
Borrowings                                                                        27             (2,511)                       -             (1,608)                       -
Obligations under finance leases                                       28                (330)                       -                (342)                       -
Derivative financial instruments                                       22                       -                       -                (385)                (385)
                                                                                                        (22,549)           (58,932)           (16,485)           (15,325)

Non-current liabilities                                                                                                                                                             
Borrowings                                                                        27         (455,496)                       -         (150,546)                       -
Obligations under finance leases                                       28             (3,304)                       -             (3,586)                       -
Derivative financial instruments                                       22             (5,636)             (1,268)             (4,735)                (882)
Deferred tax liabilities                                                       29             (7,141)                       -             (5,490)                       -
                                                                                                      (471,577)             (1,268)         (164,357)                (882)
Total liabilities                                                                                (494,126)           (60,200)         (180,842)           (16,207)
Net assets                                                                                         380,223           309,372           380,182           339,306

Equity                                                                                                                                                                                      
Share capital                                                                     30             45,365             45,365             45,365             45,365
Share premium account                                                                   112,731           112,731           112,731           112,731
Translation reserve                                                                             36,813                       -             44,783                       -
Retained earnings                                                                             184,462           151,276           176,692           181,210
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent                       379,371           309,372           379,571           339,306
Non-controlling interest                                                                         852                       -                  611                       -
Total equity                                                                                      380,223           309,372           380,182           339,306

The financial statements of Hansteen Holdings PLC, registered number 05605371, were approved by the Board of
Directors and authorised for issue on 22 March 2011. Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

I R Watson                         M L Jones
Director                                    Director
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Statements of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2010

Non-
Share Share Translation Merger Retained controlling

capital premium reserves reserves earnings Total interest Total
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Group

Balance at 1 January 2009 17,843 114,312 60,483 - 19,907 212,545 819 213,364

Issue of share capital 27,522 4,559 - 174,049 - 206,130 - 206,130

Costs of issuing share capital - (6,140) - - - (6,140) - (6,140)

Transfer to retained earnings - - - (174,049) 174,049 - - -

Dividends - - - - (5,710) (5,710) - (5,710)

Share-based payments - - - - 25 25 - 25

Loss for the year - - - - (12,096) (12,096) (150) (12,246)

Other comprehensive income/
(expense) for the year - - (15,700) - 517 (15,183) (65) (15,248)

Capital invested by 
non-controlling interest - - - - - - 7 7

Balance at 1 January 2010 45,365 112,731 44,783 - 176,692 379,571 611 380,182

Dividends - - - - (20,868) (20,868) - (20,868)

Share-based payments - - - - 47 47 - 47

Profit for the year - - - - 30,503 30,503 76 30,579

Other comprehensive 
expense for the year - - (7,970) - (1,912) (9,882) (21) (9,903)

Non-controlling interest 
acquired in the year - - - - - - 30 30

Capital invested by 
non-controlling interest - - - - - - 156 156

Balance at 31 December 2010 45,365 112,731 36,813 - 184,462 379,371 852 380,223

The merger reserve created in 2009 comprised the share premium on shares issued under the arrangement for the
Placing and Open Offer in July 2009. No share premium was recorded in the Company’s financial statements through the
operation of the Merger Relief provisions of the Companies Act 1985. The subsequent redemption of these shares gave
rise to distributable profits of £174,049,000, which were transferred to retained earnings. Costs of £6,140,000 in relation
to this share issue were written off against existing share premium as permitted by the Companies Act 1985. 
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Non-
Share Share Translation Merger Retained controlling

capital premium reserves reserves earnings Total interest Total
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Company

Balance at 1 January 2009 17,843 114,312 - - 30,473 162,628 - 162,628

Issue of share capital 27,522 4,559 - 174,049 - 206,130 - 206,130

Cost of issuing share capital - (6,140) - - (6,140) - (6,140)

Transfer to retained earnings - - - (174,049) 174,049 - - -

Dividends - - - - (5,710) (5,710) - (5,710)

Share-based payments - - - - 25 25 - 25

Loss for the year - - - - (18,144) (18,144) - (18,144)

Other comprehensive income 
for the year - - - - 517 517 - 517

Balance at 1 January 2010 45,365 112,731 - - 181,210 339,306 - 339,306

Dividends - - - - (20,868) (20,868) - (20,868)

Share-based payments - - - - 47 47 - 47

Loss for the year - - - - (7,201) (7,201) - (7,201)

Other comprehensive expense 
for the year - - - - (1,912) (1,912) - (1,912)

Balance at 31 December 2010 45,365 112,731 - - 151,276 309,372 - 309,372

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the profit and loss account of the parent company is not
presented as part of these accounts. The parent company’s loss for the financial year amounted to £7,201,000
(2009: £18,144,000).
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Cash Flow Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010

                                                                                                                                                               2010                2009
Group                                                                                                                             Note               £’000                £’000

Net cash inflow from operating activities                                                                         32               6,210             13,679

Investing activities

Interest received                                                                                                                                       600                1,048

Additions to property, plant and equipment                                                                                         (254)                  (46)

Additions to investment properties                                                                                                  (67,568)             (8,284)

Proceeds on sale of investment properties                                                                                         29,487             10,292

Net cash inflow on acquisition of subsidiaries                                                                                       8,692                       -

Disposal of subsidiaries                                                                                                                                  -                     10

Acquisition of associates                                                                                                                   (14,992)           (15,008)

Acquisition of other investments                                                                                                                  -             (3,447)

Proceeds from sale of available for sale investment                                                                             7,034                       -

Net cash used in investing activities                                                                                                (37,001)           (15,435)

Financing activities

Dividends paid                                                                                                                                   (20,868)             (5,710)

Proceeds from issue of shares at a premium net of expenses                                                                      -           194,686

Repayments of obligations under finance leases                                                                                   (154)                (155)

New bank loans raised (net of expenses)                                                                                          100,694                       -

Bank loans repaid (net of expenses)                                                                                                 (46,175)         (109,851)

Additions to derivative financial instruments                                                                                     (4,817)                (609)

Settlement of derivative financial instruments                                                                                (30,752)                       -

Settlement of forward currency contract                                                                                                    -           (49,628)

Capital contribution from non-controlling shareholders                                                                         159                       7

Net cash (used in)/from financing activities                                                                                      (1,913)             28,740

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents                                                                    (32,704)             26,984

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year                                                                               100,970             80,240

Effect of foreign exchange rates                                                                                                            (824)             (6,254)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year                                                                                          67,442           100,970
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                                                                                                                                                               2010                2009
Company                                                                                                                        Note               £’000                £’000

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities                                                       32             65,565         (101,717)

Investing activities

Interest received                                                                                                                                    1,483                2,326

Dividends received from subsidiaries                                                                                                             -                     26

Investments in subsidiaries                                                                                                                (88,301)                       -

Disposal of subsidiaries                                                                                                                                  -                       6

Acquisition of other investments                                                                                                                  -             (3,447)

Proceeds from sale of available for sale investment                                                                             7,034                       -

Net cash used in investing activities                                                                                                (79,784)             (1,089)

Financing activities

Dividends paid                                                                                                                                   (20,868)             (5,710)

Proceeds from issue of shares at a premium net of expenses                                                                      -           194,686

Additions to derivative financial instruments                                                                                     (4,545)                (609)

Settlement of forward currency contract                                                                                              (48)           (49,628)

Net cash (used in)/from financing activities                                                                                    (25,461)           138,739

Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents                                                                   (39,680)             35,933

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year                                                                                 87,253             55,617

Effect of foreign exchange rates                                                                                                            (139)             (4,297)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year                                                                                          47,434             87,253
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1 General information
Hansteen Holdings PLC is a company which was incorporated in the United Kingdom and registered in
England and Wales on 27 October 2005. The Company is required to comply with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006. The address of the registered office is 6th Floor, Clarendon House, 12 Clifford
Street, London W1S 2LL.

The Company was listed on AIM on 29 November 2005 and subsequently moved from AIM to the Official
List on 6 October 2009.

The Group’s principal activities are those of a property group investing mainly in industrial properties in
Continental Europe and the United Kingdom.

These financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling because that is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates. Foreign operations are included in accordance
with the policies set out in note 3.

2 Adoption of new and revised standards
Standards, amendments and interpretations that became effective and were adopted, where applicable,
in 2010 and have an effect on the Group’s operations:

IFRS 3 (2008) Business Combinations, IAS 27 (2008) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, IAS
28 (2008) Investments in Associates

These standards have introduced a number of changes in the accounting for business combinations
when acquiring a subsidiary or an associate. IFRS 3 (2008) has also introduced additional disclosure
requirements for acquisitions. See note 3 for more details. 

Standards, amendments and interpretations that became effective and were adopted, where applicable,
in 2010 but have no effect on the Group’s operations: 

IFRS 2 (amended)
Clarifies that vesting conditions consist solely of service and performance conditions and how to treat
failure to meet non-vesting conditions.

IAS 23 (revised) Borrowing Costs
Eliminates option to expense borrowing costs for qualifying assets.

IAS 32 (amended) Financial Instruments: Presentation – Classification of Rights Issue 
Results in some financial instruments that currently meet the definition of a financial liability being
classified as equity as they represent a residual interest.

IAS 39 (amended) Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement – Eligible Hedged Items
Clarifies two hedge accounting issues: inflation in a financial hedged item and a one-sided risk in a
hedged item.

IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
The Interpretation provides guidance on when an entity should recognise a non-cash dividend
payable, how to measure the dividend payable and how to account for any difference between the
carrying amount of the assets distributed and the carrying amount of the dividend payable when the
payable in settled.

IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers
Clarifies requirements for agreements in which an entity receives from a customer an item of
Property, Plant and Equipment that the entity must then use either to connect the customer to a
network or to provide the customer with ongoing access to a supply of goods or services (such as a
supply of electricity, gas or water).

Improvements to IFRSs 2009 (April 2009)
Miscellaneous amendments to twelve IFRSs.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been adopted early by the Group:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IAS 24 (revised 2009) Related Party Disclosures

IFRIC 14 (amendment) Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

Improvements to IFRSs (May 2010)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010
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The Directors anticipate that the adoption of the standards and interpretations in future periods will have
no material impact on the financial statements of the Group.

3 Signi#cant accounting policies 
Basis of accounting 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, as detailed in the Directors’ report
on page 71 and in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs’) adopted by the
European Union and therefore the Group financial statements comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS
Regulation.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of
investment properties and certain financial instruments. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of the amount,
event or actions, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates. 

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31 December. Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an investee entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the
Group’s equity therein. Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of
the original business combination (see below) and the non-controlling interest’s share of changes in equity
since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the non-controlling interest in excess of the non-
controlling interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the Group except to the
extent that the non-controlling has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional investment to
cover the losses.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. 

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the
accounting policies used into line with those used by the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Business combinations

For business combinations completed prior to 1 January 2010, the following accounting policy was
applied:

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values at the date of exchange of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any
costs directly attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 Business Combinations are
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date except for non-current assets (or disposal groups)
that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations, which are recognised and measured at fair value less costs to sell.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the
business combination, the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Goodwill is not amortised but
is reviewed for impairment at least annually. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. 



26 HANSTEEN HOLDINGS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2010

3 Signi#cant accounting policies 
Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the 

cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

For business combinations completed after 1 January 2010, the following policy has been applied:

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration for each
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values at the date of exchange of assets given,
liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 (2008) are
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date except:

- Deferred tax assets or liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

- Liabilities or equity instruments related to the replacement by the Group of an acquiree’s share-
based payment awards are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment; and  

- Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard. 

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period, or
additional assets and liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised as of that date. 

The measurement period is the period from the date of acquisition to the date the Group obtains
complete information about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date and is subject
to a maximum of one year. 

Non-controlling interests in the acquiree are measured at the non-controlling shareholder’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. 

Goodwill arising in a business combination is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being
the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred and the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised. If the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred and the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain. Capitalised goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for impairment at
least annually. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale, except investment properties, are
measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Investment properties classified as held for sale are carried at fair value in accordance with IAS 40
‘Investment Properties’.

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale
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in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale which should be expected to qualify
for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and
other sales-related taxes.

Rental income is recognised on an accruals basis. Where a lease incentive is granted, which does not
enhance the value of the property, or a rent-free period is granted, the effective cost is amortised on a
straight-line basis over the period from the date of lease commencement to the earliest termination
date. 

Property management fees are recognised in the period to which they relate.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable.

Revenue from the sale of trading and investment properties is recognised when the significant risks and
returns have been transferred to the buyer. This is generally on unconditional exchange of contracts. The
profit on disposal of trading and investment properties is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset at the commencement of the accounting period plus
additions in the period.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Where a
property is held under a head lease it is initially recognised as an asset as the sum of the premium paid on
acquisition and the present value of minimum ground rent payments. The corresponding rent liability to
the head leaseholder is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Where only the
buildings element of a property lease is classified as a finance lease, the ground rent payments for the land
element are shown within operating leases. Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each Group company are presented in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated
financial statements, the results and financial position of each group company are expressed in pounds
Sterling, which is the functional currency of the Company, and the presentation currency for the
consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual companies, transactions in currencies other than
the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period in
which they arise except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity. For such non-monetary items, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also recognised directly in equity.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the date of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the Group’s foreign
currency translation reserve. Such translation differences are recognised as income or as expenses in the
period in which the operation is disposed of.
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Share-based payments

The fair value of equity-settled share-based payments to employees is determined at the date of grant
and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period based on the Company’s estimate of
options that will eventually vest. Fair value is measured by use of a binomial model for the Employee 

Share Option Scheme. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The fair value of the shares to be awarded under the Long-Term Incentive Plan is determined at the
measurement date by reference to the current share price at that date less the discounted value of
estimated future dividends.

Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. On 6 October
2009, the Group elected to join the UK REIT regime. As a REIT, the Group is exempt from UK corporation
tax on profits and gains of its property rental business, provided it meets certain conditions. Overseas
property rental income, gains and non-qualifying profits and gains of the Group (the residual business)
continue to be subject to taxation. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured on a non-discounted basis.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when
it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with
in equity. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Operating profit

Operating profit is stated after the share of results of associates and profit on sale of subsidiaries, but
before changes in fair value of forward currency contracts and currency options, finance income, finance
costs, changes in fair value of interest rate derivatives and foreign exchange movements.

Property, plant and equipment

This comprises computer and office equipment. Computers and office equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss. 

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of computers and office equipment, over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, on the following bases:

Computers three years

Fixtures and fittings five years

Office equipment three years

Investment properties

Investment properties, which comprises freehold and leasehold property held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation, are treated as acquired when the Group assumes the significant risks and rewards of
ownership. Acquisitions of investment properties including related transaction costs and subsequent
additions of a capital nature are initially recognised in the accounts at cost. At each reporting date the
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investment properties are revalued to their fair values based on a professional valuation at the balance
sheet date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Investments in subsidiary undertakings

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less provisions for impairment. 

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group is in a position to exercise significant influence, but not
control or joint control, through participation in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Investments in associates are carried in the balance sheet at cost as
adjusted by post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associate, less any
impairment in the value of individual investments. Losses of an associate in excess of the Group’s interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate) are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Where a Group company transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate. Losses may provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred in which case appropriate provision is made for impairment.

Trading properties

Trading properties are included in the balance sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value and are
treated as acquired when the Group assumes the significant risks and rewards of ownership. Cost includes
development costs specifically attributable to properties in the course of development. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price less further costs expected to be incurred to completion and
disposal. 

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group’s balance sheet when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial Assets

All financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of an
investment is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs,
except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially
measured at fair value.

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets ‘at fair value through
profit or loss’ (FVTPL), ‘held-to-maturity’ investments, ‘available-for-sale’ (AFS) financial assets and ‘loans
and receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL where the financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL. A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

• it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; or

• it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or 

• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise; or 
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• the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the Group is
provided internally on that basis; or

•  it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market are classified as loans and receivables. Loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

AFS financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets that are not classified as loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments, are not held for trading and are not designated as FVTPL on initial recognition are classified
as AFS. AFS financial assets are measured at fair value with fair value gains or losses recognised in other
comprehensive income. On sale or impairment of the asset, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.
Impairment losses on AFS financial assets are recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on an AFS equity
instrument are recognised in profit or loss when the entity’s right to receive payment is established. 

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance
sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the investment have been impacted. Objective evidence of impairment could include:

• significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

• default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

• it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised. 

Where an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit and loss in the period. In the case of AFS equity
instruments, if, in a subsequent period the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is not reversed through profit and loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognised directly in equity.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

De-recognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire; or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into. 

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values and are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

• the amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with IAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and 

• the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the revenue recognition policies set out above.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL’ or ‘other financial liabilities’.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL where the financial liability is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

• it has been incurred principally for the purpose of disposal in the near future; or

• it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or 

• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument. 

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise; or 

• the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the Group is
provided internally on that basis; or

• it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability.
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Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement. 

Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate
and foreign exchange rate risk, including foreign exchange forward contracts and options and interest rate
swaps and caps. 

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the
instrument is more than 12 months and it is not expected to be realised or settled within 12 months.
Other derivatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities.

4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
balance sheet date used in preparing these accounts are:

Property valuations

In determining the fair value of investment properties under IAS 40 at market value, there is a degree of
uncertainty and judgement involved. The Group uses external professional valuers to provide independent
valuations of the investment properties.

Financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are carried at fair value in accordance with IAS 39. In determining the fair
value of derivatives, there is a degree of judgement involved. The valuations of these derivatives are
performed by third-party external professionals.

Deferred tax

Determining the amount of carried forward tax losses to be recognised as deferred tax assets requires
management to estimate the level of future taxable profits that those losses can be offset against, in each
relevant entity and jurisdiction, and the probability that those profits will arise.

Valuation of Long-Term Incentive Plan (‘LTIP’)

In assessing whether any share awards are to be granted under the LTIP the Company is required to
estimate the growth of the net assets of the Group over the period of the LTIP and the fair value of a
share at the grant date and the balance sheet date. These estimates involve making a variety of
assumptions concerning inter alia rents and related costs, yields, administrative costs, interest rates,
exchange rates, dividend rates and the rate and level of property acquisitions.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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5 Revenue and cost of sales
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and cost of sales is as follows:

2010 2009
£’000 £’000

Investment property rental income 52,583 38,679

Trading property sales 14,083 -

Property management fees 1,161 206

Revenue 67,827 38,885

Direct operating expenses relating to investment properties 
that generated rental income (10,927) (5,475)

Cost of sales of trading properties (11,084) (65)

Cost of sales (22,011) (5,540)

Gross profit 45,816 33,345

Total revenue per IAS 18 of £68,427,000 (2009: £39,934,000) includes £600,000 (2009: £1,049,000)
interest income. 

6 Normalised pro#t before tax
Normalised profit is an adjusted measure intended to show the underlying earnings of the Group before
fair value movements and other non-recurring or otherwise exceptional items. A reconciliation of the
normalised profit before tax reconciled to the profit/(loss) before tax prepared in accordance with IFRS
rules is set out below.

2010 2009
Group £’000 £’000

Revenue 67,827 38,885

Cost of sales (22,011) (5,540)

Gross profit 45,816 33,345

Administrative expenses (9,564) (6,979)

Share of results of associates 588 (216)

Net finance costs (12,882) (10,773)

Normalised profit before tax 23,958 15,377

Negative goodwill recognised on acquisition of subsidiaries 11,532 -

Costs relating to acquisition of subsidiaries (2,724) -

Gains/(losses) on investment properties 3,994 (32,512)

Profit on sale of subsidiaries - 24

Profit on sale of available for sale investment 1,184 -

Change in fair values of derivatives (2,599) 3,515

Foreign exchange losses (2,162) (7,704)

Profit/(loss) before tax 33,183 (21,300)
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7 Operating segments
Segment revenues and results

Information reported to the Group’s Joint Chief Executives for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance is focused on the Group’s level of investment in property assets and
the related net rental income according to geographic location. The Group’s reportable segments under
IFRS 8 are therefore determined by geographic location.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by reportable segment:

2010 2009
Revenue Result Revenue Result

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Belgium 2,874 2,608 3,374 3,156

France 1,566 1,020 2,126 2,132

Germany 34,606 26,495 18,605 14,598

The Netherlands 10,769 9,686 14,574 13,317

UK 18,012 6,007 206 142

67,827 45,816 38,885 33,345

Administrative expenses* (9,564)

Negative goodwill recognised on acquisition 
of subsidiaries 11,532

Costs relating to acquisition of subsidiaries (2,724)

Administrative expenses (net) (756) (6,979)

Share of results of associate 588 (216)

Operating profit before gains/(losses) on investment 
properties and before profit on sale of subsidiaries 45,648 26,150

Gains/(losses) on investment properties by segment:

Belgium (2,699) (4,460)

France (642) (3,145)

Germany 11,316 (9,529)

Netherlands (9,289) (16,211)

UK 2,330 -

Total gains/(losses) on investment properties 1,016 (33,345)

Profit on disposal of investment properties 2,978 833

3,994 (32,512)

Profit on sale of subsidiaries - 24

Operating profit/(loss) 49,642 (6,338)

Profit on sale of available for sale investment 1,184 -

(Losses)/gains on foreign currency derivatives (2,306) 4,532

Net finance costs* (15,337) (19,494)

Profit/(loss) before tax 33,183 (21,300)

* Administrative expenses and net finance costs are substantially managed as central costs and are
therefore not allocated to segments. 



Business Overview               Financial Statements           Corporate Governance

35HANSTEEN HOLDINGS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2010

Segment assets

2010
Additions to Non-

Investment Trading Total Other Total investment current
properties properties properties assets assets properties assets

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Belgium 33,936 - 33,936 3,939 37,875 86 35,882

France 17,060 - 17,060 642 17,702 - 17,060

Germany 491,396 - 491,396 27,689 519,085 293,485 491,787

The Netherlands 145,882 - 145,882 5,540 151,422 488 146,851

UK 39,965 16,397 56,362 3,203 59,565 62,819 39,965

728,239 16,397 744,636 41,013 785,649 356,878 731,545

Unallocated assets 88,700 34,855

Total 874,349 766,400

2009
Additions to Non-

Investment Trading Total Other Total investment current
properties properties properties assets assets properties assets

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Belgium 37,893 - 37,893 5,158 43,051 6 39,898

France 18,354 - 18,354 852 19,206 - 18,354

Germany 201,189 - 201,189 10,201 211,390 7,850 201,264

The Netherlands 160,538 - 160,538 8,585 169,123 429 161,369

UK - 2,996 2,996 92 3,088 - -

417,974 2,996 420,970 24,888 445,858 8,285 420,885

Unallocated assets 115,166 24,781

Total 561,024 445,666

8 Pro#t/(loss) for the year
Profit/(loss) for the year has been arrived at after (charging)/crediting:

2010 2009
£’000 £’000

Net foreign exchange losses included in administrative expenses (24) (15)

Net foreign exchange losses included in net finance costs (2,162) (7,704)

Negative goodwill recognised on acquisition of subsidiaries 11,532 -

Costs relating to acquisition of subsidiaries (2,724) -

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (72) (23)

Profit on sale of investment properties 2,978 833

Increase/(decrease) in fair value of investment properties 1,016 (33,345)

Impairment of goodwill (58) (227)

Profit on sale of subsidiaries - 24

Auditors’ remuneration 579 774

Staff costs (see note 9) (4,577) (3,273)
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The analysis of auditors’ remuneration is as follows:

2010 2009
£’000 £’000

Audit services provided to all Group companies 314 234

Amounts for statutory and regulatory services 85 555

Total audit and audit related services 399 789

- Tax services 183 120

- Corporate finance transactions - 15

- Other 13 -

Total other services 196 135

Total auditor remuneration 595 924

Fees payable to Deloitte LLP and their associates for non-audit services to the Company are not required
to be disclosed separately because the consolidated financial statements are required to disclose such fees
on a consolidated basis.

Amounts for statutory and regulatory services comprise amounts paid to Deloitte LLP for Reporting
Accountant services in respect of the HBI acquisition (2009: the Placing and Open Offer in July 2009 and
in respect of the Accountants’ Report provided for the move from AIM to the Official List in October
2009, amounting to £135,000 and £420,000 respectively. The fees for the Placing and Open Offer
amounting to £135,000 have been deducted from share premium). 

Tax services fees paid to Deloitte LLP of £183,000 (2009: £120,000) and their associates comprise fees
for UK and overseas income tax, VAT and property tax advisory services.

Fees of £15,000 paid to Deloitte LLP during 2009 comprise professional fees in respect of the valuation of
the Company’s ordinary shares issued as consideration for the acquisition of ordinary shares in other
companies. These fees have been capitalised and are included in the cost of the investment to which they
relate. 

Fees of £3,000 (2009: £nil) were paid to Deloitte in respect of the modification of existing share option
schemes announced on 30 December 2010. Fees of £10,000 (2009: £nil) were paid to Deloitte in respect
of non-statutory audit work. 

9 Sta$ costs
The average monthly number of employees (including Executive Directors) was:

2010 2009
No No

Administration 29 20

Their aggregate remuneration was:
2010 2009

£’000 £’000

Wages and salaries 3,805 2,758

Share-based payments 47 25

Social security costs 530 341

Other pension costs 195 149

4,577 3,273

The amounts shown against pension costs comprise amounts payable by the Group to personal pension
schemes of the employees.

The Company had no employees in either the current or preceding financial year. 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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10 Gains/(losses) on investment properties
2010 2009

£’000 £’000

Increase/(decrease) in fair value of investment properties 1,016 (33,345)

Profit on disposal of investment properties 2,978 833

3,994 (32,512)

11 (Losses)/gains on foreign currency derivatives
2010 2009

£’000 £’000

Increase in fair value of forward currency contracts - 5,088

Decrease in fair value of currency options (2,306) (556)

(2,306) 4,532

12 Net #nance costs
2010 2009

£’000 £’000

Interest receivable on bank deposits 501 988

Other interest receivable 99 61

Finance income 600 1,049

Write-off of bank loan fees - (1,464)

Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts (13,281) (10,176)

Interest payable on obligations under finance leases (173) (182)

Other interest payable (28) -

Finance costs (13,482) (11,822)

Net interest paid (12,882) (10,773)

Decrease in fair value of interest rate swaps and caps (293) (1,017)

Foreign exchange losses (2,162) (7,704)

Net finance costs (15,337) (19,494)
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13 Tax
2010 2009

£’000 £’000

UK current tax

On net income of the current year 531 4,718

Charge/(credit) in respect of prior years 95 (8,636)

626 (3,918)

Foreign current tax

On net income of the current year 757 (361)

Charge/(credit) in respect of prior years 14 (156)

771 (517)

Total current tax 1,397 (4,435)

Deferred tax (see note 29) 1,207 (4,619)

Total tax charge/(credit) 2,604 (9,054)

UK Corporation tax is calculated at 28% (2009: 28%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The tax charge/(credit) for the year can be reconciled to the profit/(loss) per the income statement as
follows:

2010 2009
£’000 £’000

Profit/(loss) before tax 33,183 (21,300)

Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 28% (2009: 28%) 9,291 (5,964)

Tax effect of :

UK tax not payable due to REIT exemption (3,006) -

Gain on investment properties caused by movement in exchange rates - 184

UK deferred tax on investment properties released on REIT conversion - (15,667)

Overseas tax not deductible due to REIT conversion - 219

Overseas deferred tax - 1,096

REIT entry charge - 4,316

Foreign exchange differences (73) 1,295

Deferred tax assets not recognised (350) 8,007

Effect of different tax rates in overseas subsidiaries (4,601) (1,502)

Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 1,223 6

Short-term timing differences (62) (108)

Adjustment in respect of prior years 182 (936)

2,604 (9,054)

The Group elected to be treated as a UK REIT with effect from 6 October 2009, following admission to
the Official List. The UK REIT rules exempt the profits of the Group’s property rental business from UK
corporation tax. Gains on UK properties are also exempt from tax, provided they are not held for trading.
The Group is otherwise subject to UK corporation tax. To remain a UK REIT there are a number of
conditions to be met in respect of the principal company of the Group, the Group’s qualifying activity and
its balance of business which are set out in the UK REIT legislation in the Finance Act 2006. 

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010
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14 Dividends
2010 2009

Group and Company £’000 £’000

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period:

Dividend for the year ended 31 December 2009 of 3.2p 
(2008: 3.2p) per share 14,517 5,710

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2010 of 1.4p 
(2009: £nil) per share 6,351 -

20,868 5,710

As a REIT, the Company is required to pay Property Income Distributions (‘PIDs’) equal to at least 90% of
the Group’s exempted net income, after deduction of withholding tax at the basic rate (currently 20%).
£4,082,000 of the cash dividends paid during the year ended 31 December 2010 is attributable to PIDs
(2009: £nil), of which £2,540,000 is in respect of the year ended 31 December 2010 and £1,542,000 in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2009.

15 Earnings per share and net asset value per share
The calculations for earnings per share, based on the weighted average number of shares, are shown in
the table below. 

The European Public Real Estate Association (‘EPRA’) has issued recommended bases for the calculation of
certain per share information and these are included in the following tables. 

2010 2009
Weighted Weighted

average Earnings average Earnings
number of per number of per

Earnings shares share Earnings shares share
£’000 000’s pence £’000 000’s pence

Basic EPS 30,503 453,648 6.7 (12,096) 312,610 (3.9)

Dilutive share options - 70 - - 38 -

Diluted EPS 30,503 453,718 6.7 (12,096) 312,648 (3.9)

Adjustments:

Revaluation (gains)/losses on 
investment properties (1,016) 33,345

Profit on the sale of investment 
properties (2,978) (833)

Profit on sale of trading properties (3,114) -

Profit on the sale of subsidiary 
undertakings - (24)

Tax on the sale of investment 
properties - 143

Negative goodwill recognised 
on acquisition of subsidiaries (11,532) -

Cost of acquiring subsidiaries 2,266 -

Change in fair value of 
financial instruments 2,599 (3,515)

Deferred tax on the above items 1,745 (2,131)

Diluted EPRA EPS 18,473 4.1 14,889 4.8
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15 Earnings per share and net asset value per share

The calculations for net asset value (‘NAV’) per share are shown in the table below:

2010 2009
Equity Net Equity Net
share- Number asset share- Number asset

holders’ of value holders’ of value
funds shares per share funds shares per share
£’000 000’s pence £’000 000’s pence

Basic NAV 379,371 453,648 84 379,571 453,648 84

Unexercised share options 570 850 n/a 603 850 n/a

Diluted NAV 379,941 454,498 84 380,174 454,498 84

Adjustments:

Goodwill (1,946) (2,004)

Fair value of interest rate 
derivatives 5,328 1,017

Deferred tax 5,328 4,035

Diluted EPRA NAV 388,651 86 383,222 84

16 Goodwill
2010 2009

Group £’000 £’000

Cost and carrying amount:

At 1 January 2,004 2,241

Cost on disposal of subsidiary undertakings - (10)

Impairment charge included within administration expenses (58) (227)

At 31 December 1,946 2,004

The goodwill recognised on acquisition of subsidiary undertakings relates to the acquisition, on 31 August
2007, of a portfolio of Belgian subsidiary companies which is considered to be the relevant cash-
generating unit. 

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are any indications that
goodwill might be impaired.

The recoverable amounts with regard to the Belgian subsidiary companies are determined on the basis of
fair value less costs to sell by reference to the valuation of the underlying properties as performed by King
Sturge LLP. The assumptions in relation to determining the fair value of the Belgian portfolio are:

• Fair value of the investment properties in the portfolio – the fair value of these properties are
determined under RICS and in accordance with IVA1 of the International Valuation Standards on a
bi-annual basis; and

• The discount to be applied in the sale transaction in respect of deferred tax liabilities carried in the
individual entities – it is normal business practice in Belgium to execute property transactions by
sale of a company. On disposal of a property company, a sales price discount is normally negotiated
because of the inherent capital gains tax in these companies. The discount varies widely and is open
to negotiation. Following the disposal of Erangra NV in October 2008, whereby no sales price
discount was necessary and the full valuation price was realised, the Group has assumed that no
sales price discount will be necessary for the disposal of the remainder of the portfolio.

A sensitivity analysis indicates that a discount of 50% or more on the underlying deferred tax balances
included in the Belgian subsidiary companies as at 31 December 2010 would lead to a further impairment
of goodwill. 
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17 Property, plant and equipment
Fixtures and Office Computer

fittings equipment equipment Total
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Group

Cost:

At 1 January 2009 - 2 80 82

Additions - 3 43 46

Disposals - - (6) (6)

At 1 January 2010 - 5 117 122

Additions 182 15 57 254

At 31 December 2010 182 20 174 376

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 January 2009 - 1 49 50

Charge for the year - 1 22 23

Disposals - - (6) (6)

At 1 January 2010 - 2 65 67

Charge for the year 31 5 36 72

At 31 December 2010 31 7 101 139

Net book value:

At 31 December 2010 151 13 73 237

At 31 December 2009 - 3 52 55

The Company does not own any property, plant and equipment. 

18 Investment property
2010 2009

Group £’000 £’000

At 1 January 417,974 492,357

Additions –  property purchases 352,130 6,718

–  capital expenditure 4,748 1,567

Revaluations included in income statement 1,016 (33,345)

Disposals (26,888) (9,459)

Exchange adjustment (20,741) (39,864)

At 31 December 728,239 417,974

All investment properties are stated at market value as at 31 December and have been valued by
independent professionally qualified external valuers, King Sturge LLP. The valuations have been prepared
in accordance with the Valuation Standards (6th Edition) published by The Royal Institute of Chartered
Surveyors and with IVA1 of the International Valuation Standards.

The Group has pledged certain of its investment properties to secure bank loan facilities and a finance
lease granted to the Group.
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19 Investment in subsidiary undertakings
Total

Company £’000
Cost and net book value:

Balance at 1 January 2010 124,641

Additions 88,301

Balance at 31 December 2010 212,942

Details of all of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2010 are as follows:

Proportion Proportion
of of

Place ownership voting power
of interest held

incorporation % %

Hansteen Belgium Limited United Kingdom 100 100

Hansteen Property Investments Limited 
(formerly Hansteen Developments Limited) United Kingdom 100 100

Hansteen Europe Limited United Kingdom 100 100

Hansteen Land Limited United Kingdom 100 100

Hansteen Limited United Kingdom 100 100

Hansteen France SAS France 100 100

Hansteen Germany Limited United Kingdom 100 100

Hansteen Germany (2) Limited United Kingdom 100 100

Hansteen Germany (3) Limited United Kingdom 100 100

Hansteen Germany Residential Limited United Kingdom 100 100

Hansteen LP Limited United Kingdom 100 100

Hansteen (General Partner) Limited United Kingdom 100 100

Hansteen Netherlands B.V. The Netherlands 100 100

Hansteen Ormix B.V. The Netherlands 75 100

Hansteen Luxembourg S.à r.l** Luxembourg 100 100

Hansteen Luxembourg Investments S.à r.l** Luxembourg 94.9 50

Hansteen Germany Holdings S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Delta GP S.à r.l* Luxembourg 100 100

Hansteen Bad Schonborn S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Billbrook S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Borsigstrasse S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Braunschweig S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Bremen S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Cologne S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Dieselstrasse S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Dormagen S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Dusseldorf S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Geldern S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Gladbeck S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Glinde S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Gottmadingen S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Hannover S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010
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Proportion Proportion
of of

Place ownership voting power
of interest held

incorporation % %

Hansteen Holzhauser Markt S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Ladbergen S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Leipzig S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Maisach S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Miraustrasse S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Neukirchen-Vluyn S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Neuss S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Paderborn S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Philipp-Reis Strasse S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Pleidelsheim S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Porschestrasse S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Querumer Forst S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Regensburg S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Rodenbach S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Soltau S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Tegel S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Troisdorf S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Viersen S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Waldstrasse S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Gustavsburg S.à r.l & Co KG* Germany 99.76 99.76

Praetorium 54. VV GmbH* Germany 99.74 99.74

Matterhorn 391. VV GmbH* Germany 99.74 99.74

Ganymed 348. VV GmbH* Germany 99.74 99.74

Petersburg 371. VV GmbH* Germany 99.74 99.74

Arman B01 BVBA* Belgium 100 100

Hert BVBA* Belgium 100 100

I.P.I Nossegem NV* Belgium 100 100

Small Island Management NV* Belgium 100 100

Tycoons Immo BVBA* Belgium 100 100

Vignée Invest NV* Belgium 100 100

Waterloo Investments NV* Belgium 100 100

Madeira Walk (Windsor) Management Limited* United Kingdom 100 100

Each of the undertakings listed above is engaged in property development, investment or management.

*   Held indirectly 

** Incorporated during the year
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20 Investment in associates
Total

Group £’000
Cost and net book value:

Balance at 1 January 2010 14,792

Additions 14,992

Share of profit after tax for the year 588

At 31 December 2010 30,372

Details of all of the Group’s interests in associates at 31 December 2010 are as follows:

Proportion Proportion
of of

Place ownership voting power
of interest held

establishment % %

Hansteen UK Industrial Property Unit Trust Jersey 33.3 30

Hansteen UK Industrial Property Unit Trust is involved in property management. The interest in Hansteen
UK Industrial Property Unit Trust is held indirectly via Hansteen LP Limited. The interest in Hansteen UK
Industrial Property Unit Trust is stated at cost adjusted for movement in the Group’s share of net assets
post acquisition. 

Aggregated amounts relating to associates
2010

£’000

Total assets 94,170

Total liabilities (3,057)

2010
£’000

Revenues 1,122

Profit 1,762

21 Other investments
2010

£’000
Available for sale investments carried at fair value

Fair value

Balance at 1 January 2010 9,511

Disposals (6,720)

Fair value remeasurement (1,286)

At 31 December 2010 1,505

On 14 April 2010, the Company disposed of its entire investment in Kenmore European Industrial Fund
(‘KEIF’), realising a profit of £1,184,000. The remaining investment consists of 10,377,389 shares held in
Warner Estate Holding PLC. 
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22 Derivative #nancial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are included in the balance sheet as follows: 

2010 2009
Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Financial assets and liabilities held for trading

Non-current assets 2,648 2,341 163 6

Current assets - - 53 53

Current liabilities - - (385) (385)

Non-current liabilities (5,636) (1,268) (4,735) (882)

(2,988) 1,073 (4,904) (1,208)

The movements on derivative financial instruments are as follows: 

Interest Interest
Currency rate rate

option caps swaps Total
Group £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Financial assets and liabilities held for trading

Fair value at 1 January 2010 53 163 (5,120) (4,904)

Additions at cost 4,594 223 - 4,817

Disposals/amortisation (49) - - (49)

Revaluations included in income statement (2,257) (74) (215) (2,546)

Accrued interest - - (423) (423)

Exchange difference - (5) 122 117

Fair value at 31 December 2010 2,341 307 (5,636) (2,988)

Interest Interest
Currency rate rate

option caps swaps Total
Company £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Financial assets and liabilities held for trading

Fair value at 1 January 2010 53 6 (1,267) (1,208)

Additions at cost 4,593 - - 4,593

Disposals/amortisation (48) - - (48)

Revaluations included in income statement (2,257) (6) 67 (2,196)

Accrued interest - - (68) (68)

Fair value at 31 December 2010 2,341 - (1,268) 1,073
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23 Trading properties
2010 2009

Group £’000 £’000

Balance at 1 January 2010 2,996 2,996

Additions 24,362 -

Disposals (10,961) -

16,397 2,996

The carrying amount approximates their fair value.

24 Trade and other receivables
2010 2009

Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Trade receivables 4,171 - 1,860 -

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - 102,338 - 131,237

Amounts owed by related parties 344 - 162 -

Other receivables 16,402 2,506 8,354 2,376

Prepayments and accrued income 3,193 105 963 18

24,110 104,949 11,339 133,631

Group trade receivables are shown after deducting a provision for bad and doubtful debts of £4,510,000
(2009: £1,040,000). The increase in the provision from the prior year can be attributed to the provision
acquired as part of the HBI acquisition and the movement in the provision for Group companies existing
at the previous year end. 

The carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.

25 Cash and cash equivalents
2010 2009

Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Cash and cash equivalents 67,442 47,434 100,970 87,253

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less. The carrying value of these assets approximates to their fair value. 

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010
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26 Trade and other payables
2010 2009

Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Trade payables 4,384 29 1,019 33

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - 58,391 - 10,104

Other payables 2,062 - 1,014 -

Accruals 6,405 160 3,604 487

Deferred income 4,148 - 3,607 -

16,999 58,580 9,244 10,624

Trade creditors and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing
costs. The average credit period taken for trade purchases by the Company is five days (2009: eight days).
For most suppliers no interest is charged on the trade payables for the first 30 days from the date of the
invoice. Thereafter, interest is charged on the outstanding balances at various interest rates. The
Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to their fair value.

27 Borrowings
2010 2009

Group £’000 £’000

Secured at amortised cost

Bank loans 458,360 152,491

Unamortised borrowing costs (353) (337)

458,007 152,154

Total borrowings

Amount due for settlement within 12 months 2,511 1,608

Amount due for settlement after 12 months 455,496 150,546

Bank loans 458,007 152,154

On 25 July 2006 Hansteen Holdings PLC and certain of its subsidiary undertakings entered into a five year
!230,000,000 revolving bank loan facility with an expiry date of 25 July 2011. On 29 May 2008, following
the re-financing of the Dutch portfolio of investment properties, this facility was reduced to
!200,000,000. On 30 October 2009, the facility was extended and reduced to !150,000,000. The revised
facility has an expiry date of 30 October 2014 and has a loan to value covenant of 75% and an income
cover covenant of 175%. The loan is secured on the shares of the borrowing subsidiaries and their
investment properties and is guaranteed by Hansteen Holdings PLC and the borrowing subsidiaries.
Interest on the amounts drawn under the original loan facility was charged at EURIBOR plus 0.8%.
Following renegotiation of the facility, interest on amounts drawn down from 30 October 2009 is
charged at EURIBOR plus 1.75%. Interest of 1.0% (previously 0.3%) is charged on undrawn amounts. The
Group has drawn down !139,000,000 under this facility at 31 December 2010 (2009: !23,000,000). 

On 25 May 2008 Hansteen Netherlands B.V. and Hansteen Ormix B.V., both Dutch subsidiaries, entered
into a five year !130,000,000 bank loan facility with an expiry date of 1 June 2013. 

The !130,000,000 drawn down under the facility was used to repay existing borrowings of the Dutch
subsidiaries. The loan is secured on the properties of Hansteen Netherlands B.V. and Hansteen Ormix B.V.
The net sales proceeds arising from sales of investment properties are required to be used to reduce the
bank loan unless re-invested in investment properties. Interest on the amounts drawn under the loan
facility is charged at EURIBOR plus 1.55%. There is no loan to value covenant on this loan and the interest
cover covenant is 155%.  At 31 December 2010 the Group has drawn down !117,000,000 under this
facility (2009: !128,565,000) and no further amounts can be drawn.
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27 Borrowings

On 8 April 2010, as part of the acquisition of the HBI portfolio, the Group became party to a
!300,000,000 loan facility. Immediately after acquisition, the Group repaid !40,000,000, reducing the
facility to !260,000,000. The facility has an expiry date of 20 February 2015. The loan is secured on the
shares of the borrowing subsidiaries and their investment properties and is guaranteed by Hansteen
Holdings PLC and the borrowing subsidiaries. Interest on the amounts drawn under the loan facility is
charged at EURIBOR plus 1.10%. The Group has drawn down !260,000,000 under this facility at 31
December 2010 (2009: ! nil). The 5 year loan does not have any loan to value covenants for the first
year, 95% in years two and three, 85% in year four and 75% in year five. The interest covenant is set at
132% in year one, 144% in year two and 155% thereafter.

The Belgian subsidiaries have a number of facilities secured on the Belgian investment properties with
expiry dates ranging from 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2026 and interest charged at EURIBOR plus 0.75% to
2.25%. The aggregate amount outstanding at 31 December 2010 in respect of these bank loans is
!18,907,000 (2009: !20,064,000).

Security for secured borrowings at 31 December 2010 is provided by charges on property with an
aggregate carrying value of £670,000,000 (2009: £389,000,000).

The Directors estimate that the book value of the Group’s bank loans approximates to their fair value.

2010 2009
Group £’000 £’000

Maturity

The bank loans are repayable as follows:

Within one year or on demand 2,743 1,786

Between one and two years 2,632 2,384

In the third to fifth years inclusive 443,245 137,366

Over five years 9,740 10,955

458,360 152,491

Undrawn committed facilities

Expiring after more than two years 9,426 112,839

2010 2009
% £’000 % £’000

Interest rate and currency profile
Euros 3.28 458,360 4.29 152,491

A number of interest rate caps and swaps have been entered into in respect of the amounts drawn under
the loan facilities at 31 December 2010 to hedge Euro borrowings at an average rate of 3.60% (2009:
4.59%) (see note 22). 

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010
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28 Obligations under #nance leases
Minimum lease Present value of

payments lease payments
2010 2009 2010 2009

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Group

Amounts payable under finance leases:

Within one year 330 342 160 160

In the second to fifth years inclusive 1,320 1,369 707 705

After five years 3,535 4,008 2,767 3,063

5,185 5,719 3,634 3,928

Less: future finance charges (1,551) (1,791) n/a n/a

Present value of lease obligations 3,634 3,928 3,634 3,928

Less: amount due for settlement within 12 months 
(shown under current liabilities) (330) (342)

Amount due for settlement after 12 months 3,304 3,586

The lease is held in I.P.I. Nossegem NV, a Belgian subsidiary and is denominated in Euros. The lease term
outstanding at 31 December 2010 is 13 years (2009: 14 years). For the year ended 31 December 2010,
the interest rate implicit in the lease was 4.7637% (2009: 4.7452%). Interest rates are fixed every five
years and interest rate and capital repayments adjusted to reflect this. 

The fair value of the Group’s lease obligations approximates their carrying amount.

The Group’s obligations under the finance lease are secured by the lessors’ rights over the leased assets.

29 Deferred tax
Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes:

2010 2009
Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Deferred tax assets 1,453 401 1,167 418

Deferred tax liabilities (7,141) - (5,490) -

(5,688) 401 (4,323) 418
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29 Deferred tax
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised and movements thereon during
the reporting period.

Currency
Revaluation Depreciation contracts

of of and interest Short-term
investment investment rate timing
properties properties derivatives Losses differences Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Group

At 1 January 2010 1,798 (8,852) 1,460 1,683 (412) (4,323)

Credit/(charge) to income 2,210 (3,286) (188) 288 (231) (1,207)

Corporate acquisitions 2,449 (3,155) 231 - (109) (584)

Charge to reserves - - - - 244 244

Exchange differences (91) 380 (43) (72) 8 182

At 31 December 2010 6,366 (14,913) 1,460 1,899 (500) (5,688)

Company

At 1 January 2010 - - 418 214 (214) 418

Credit/(charge) to income - - (17) (214) (30) (261)

Charge to reserves - - - - 244 244

At 31 December 2010 - - 401 - - 401

At 31 December 2010 the Group has unutilised tax losses amounting to £49,987,000 (2009:
£43,093,000) available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of £7,508,000 (2009: £6,415,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining £42,479,000 (2009: £36,678,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in recognised tax losses are losses of £4,206,000 (2009: £3,104,000) that will expire in
2015. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of £8,174,000 (2009: £7,625,000) that will expire in
2017 and losses of £3,039,000 (2009: £nil) that will expire in 2015. Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

30 Share capital
2010 2009

£’000 £’000

Issued and fully paid

453,648,064 ordinary shares of 10p each 45,365 45,365

The share capital comprises one class of ordinary shares carrying no right to fixed income. There are no
specific restrictions on the size of a shareholding or the transfer of shares, except for UK REIT restrictions
which became effective from 6 October 2009 following conversion to a REIT. 
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31 Acquisition of subsidiaries
On 8 April 2010, for a cash consideration of !1, a subsidiary of the Company acquired 94.9% of the issued
share capital of HBI Holding S.à r.l and its subsidiaries (together the ‘HBI Group’). On the same date, for a
cash consideration of !1, a joint venture between the Company and Stichting Interhan, acquired 5.1% of
the HBI Group, thereby giving the Group control of the HBI Group, with an effective economic benefit of
99.74%.  The HBI Group is a portfolio of 34 companies incorporated and registered in Luxembourg, four
companies incorporated and registered in Germany and a Partnership established in Germany. In addition,
for a cash consideration of !1, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of HBI Delta GP 
S.à r.l, a company incorporated and registered in Luxembourg, obtaining control of HBI Delta GP S.à r.l.
34 of the acquired companies are engaged in property investment and management in Germany. The
remaining companies are non-trading. On 12 May 2010, HBI Holding S.à r.l and HBI Delta GP S.à r.l were
renamed Hansteen Germany Holdings S.à r.l and Hansteen Delta GP S.à r.l, respectively. This transaction
has been accounted for in accordance with IFRS 3 (2008) and a summary of the assets and liabilities
acquired is as follows:

Provisonal book
and fair value

£’000

Net assets acquired:

Investment properties 289,311

Trade and other receivables 13,537

Cash and cash equivalents 8,692

Current tax recoverable 245

Trade and other payables (6,053)

Bank loans (262,835)

Derivative financial instruments (30,752)

Deferred tax liabilities (583)

Non-controlling interest (30)

11,532

Total consideration -

Satisfied by:

Cash -

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition

Cash consideration -

Cash and cash equivalents acquired 8,692

8,692

The net assets acquired exceed the consideration by £11,532,000. Under IFRS 3 (2008) this is considered
to be negative goodwill arising on acquisition and is recognised in profit and loss immediately. 

Costs directly attributable to the acquisition of £2,266,000 have been expensed and are included within
Administrative expenses in the income statement in accordance with IFRS 3 (2008). A further £458,000
of acquisition related costs are also included within Administrative expenses in the income statement. 

Immediately after acquisition, the Group injected an amount of !75,631,000 into the HBI Group, in the
form of !70,000,000 capital and !5,631,000 intercompany loans. !40,000,000 of this was used to reduce
the bank loan acquired to !260,000,000, !35,100,000 was used to close out the interest rate swap
acquired and !261,300 was used to acquire two new interest rate caps.

The HBI Group contributed £18,082,000 revenue and £11,741,000 to the Group’s profit before tax for
the period between the date of acquisition and the balance sheet date.

If the acquisition of the subsidiaries had been completed on the first day of the financial year, Group
revenues for the year would have been £75,162,000 and profit before tax would have been £40,011,000.
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32 Notes to the cash %ow statement
2010 2009

Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Profit/(loss) for the year 30,579 (7,201) (12,246) (18,144)

Adjustments for:

Share-based employee remuneration 47 47 25 25

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 72 - 23 -

Impairment of goodwill 58 - 227 -

Negative goodwill on HBI acquisition (11,532) - - -

Share of (profits)/losses of associate (588) - 216 -

(Gains)/losses on investment properties (3,994) - 32,512 -

Gain on sale of subsidiaries - - (24) (9)

Gain on sale of available for sale investment (1,184) (1,184) - -

Losses/(gains) on foreign currency derivatives 2,306 2,306 (4,532) (4,532)

Net finance costs 14,796 2,720 16,582 5,805

Tax charge/(credit) 2,604 261 (9,054) 13,931

Operating cash inflows/(outflows) 
before movements in working capital 33,164 (3,051) 23,729 (2,924)

Increase in trading properties (13,401) - (246) -

Decrease/(increase) in receivables 760 25,522 632 (73,464)

Increase/(decrease) in payables 2,115 49,231 10 (23,835)

Cash generated from/(used in) operations 22,638 71,702 24,125 (100,223)

Income taxes (paid)/received (3,383) (4,316) (1,998) 310

Interest paid (13,045) (1,821) (8,448) (1,804)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 6,210 65,565 13,679 (101,717)

33 Operating lease arrangements
The Group as lessee

2010 2009
£’000 £’000

Minimum lease payments under operating leases 
recognised as an expense in the year: 504 614

As at the balance sheet date the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

2010 2009
£’000 £’000

Within one year 506 353

In the second to fifth years inclusive 1,993 1,046

After five years 23,194 14,485

25,693 15,884
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Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group under ground rent leases for certain of
its investment properties and rentals payable in respect of its head office property under a licence
agreement with an unexpired term of twelve months as at the balance sheet date.

The Group as lessor

The Group leases all of its investment properties under operating leases. As at the balance sheet date the
Group had contracted with tenants for the following future aggregate minimum rentals receivable under
non-cancellable operating leases: 

2010 2009
£’000 £’000

Within one year 54,329 31,614

In the second to fifth years inclusive 105,172 66,851

After five years 37,778 24,880

197,279 123,345

34 Share-based payments
During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group had two share-based payment arrangements with
employees. Both of the Group’s share-based payment schemes are equity settled, either by award of
options to acquire ordinary shares (Employee Share Option Scheme) or award of ordinary shares (Long-
Term Incentive Plan). On 30 December 2010, the Group announced it had modified the exercise price of
options granted under the Scheme as a result of the issuance of shares in 2009 at prices below the
prevailing market prices at the relevant time. There has been no impact on fair value as a result of this
change. 

The exercise price of the following options granted under the Scheme have now been adjusted as follows:

Date of grant No. of options granted Previous exercise price Revised exercise price

03/01/2006 300,000 100p 95p

06/03/2006 100,000 128p 122p

20/04/2009 850,000 71p 67p

The total share-based payment charge relating to Hansteen Holdings PLC shares for the year was made
up as follows:

2010 2009
£’000 £’000

Employee share option scheme 47 25

47 25

Equity-settled share option scheme

The 2005 Share Option Scheme is open to certain senior employees of the Group and currently has five
participants one of whom, Richard Lowes, was granted options prior to becoming an Executive Director
of the Company. None of the other Directors of the Company have been granted options under the
Scheme. In the case of options granted within three months of admission of shares to trading on AIM,
options are exercisable at the price at which shares were placed in connection with the float, being £1
per share. All options granted after this date are exercisable at a price equal to the average quoted
market price of the ordinary shares of Hansteen Holdings PLC on the date of grant. The options have a
three year vesting period that is not subject to performance conditions. If the options remain unexercised
after a period of ten years from the date of grant, the options expire. Options are normally forfeited if
the employee leaves the Group before the options vest. In accordance with IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payment’
the fair value of equity-settled share-based payments to employees is determined at the date of grant
and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period based on the Group’s estimate of options
that will eventually vest. Fair value is calculated using a Binomial pricing model.
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34 Share-based payments
Equity-settled share option scheme

Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as follows:

Weighted average
Number of exercise price

share options pence

Outstanding at 1 January 2010 1,250,000 78.1

Options granted during the year 150,000 80.0

Outstanding 31 December 2010 1,400,000 78.3

Exercisable at 31 December 2010 400,000 102.0

Years

Weighted average remaining contractual life 7.48

The options outstanding under the scheme are exercisable at exercise prices ranging from 67.0p to
122.0p in years from 2010 up to 2020. On 8 April 2010 options were granted in respect of 150,000
ordinary shares at an exercise price of 80.0p per share. The aggregate of the fair values of the
outstanding options at the dates granted is £292,000 determined according to the Binomial model.

The inputs into the Binomial model are as follows:

Options granted during the year ended 31 December 2006:

Weighted average share price 124.0p

Weighted average exercise price 101.8p*

Expected volatility 25%

Expected life 3-8 years

Risk free rate 4.16%

Expected dividend yield 3%

Options granted during the year ended 31 December 2009:

Weighted average share price 71.0p

Weighted average exercise price 67.0p*

Expected volatility 25%

Expected life 3-8 years

Risk free rate 2.89%

Expected dividend yield 3.2p per annum

* as modified

Options granted during the year ended 31 December 2010:

Weighted average share price 80.0p

Weighted average exercise price 80.0p

Weighted average fair value 16.38p

Expected volatility 27%

Expected life 3-8 years

Risk free rate 3.67%

Expected dividend yield 3.2p per annum
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The expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Company’s share
price over the period from the date the Company floated on AIM on 29 November 2005 and the dates
the options were granted and also by comparison with the volatilities of similar companies over the same
period. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for
the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

Equity-settled long-term incentive scheme (LTIP)

Details of the Group’s LTIP scheme are described in the remuneration report. 

The assumptions used in the calculations for the current year are set out in the table below.

2010 2009
£’000 £’000

Date of grant 01/01/2010 22/11/2005

Number of instruments Nil nil

Share price at the date of grant 80.5p 100.0p

Share price at the date of measurement 81.5p 80.5p

Contractual life 3 years 4 years

Risk-free interest rate 5% 5%

Expected outcome of meeting performance criteria (at date of grant) 0% 100%

Vesting is dependent on the Company’s NAV growth per share exceeding a compound growth rate of
10% per annum in the three years ending on 31 December 2012.

A progressive dividend growth policy is assumed in all fair value calculations.

Current projections, using assumptions based on current interest rates, current exchange rates and
current property yields indicate that the liability to the Executive Directors under the scheme for the
period up to 31 December 2010 is estimated to be £nil (2009: £nil).

35 Events after the balance sheet date
On 6 July 2010, the Company declared it would pay two dividends a year. For the year ended 31
December 2010, an interim dividend of 1.4p per share was paid on 25 November 2010. The second
dividend of 2.1p per share will be payable on 26 May 2011 to shareholders on the register on 3 May 2011. 

The UK Government announced a future decrease in the UK corporation tax rate from 27.0% to 24.0%
over the next three years. The impact of the proposed rate change is not material to the Group. 
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36 Related party transactions
a) Group

Trading transactions

During the year, Group subsidiaries entered into trading transactions with related parties who are not
members of the Group:

Purchase/(provision) Amounts owed (to)/
of services from related parties

2010 2009 2010 2009
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Ormix B.V. 48 57 (5) -

Hansteen UK Industrial Property Limited Partnership 1,127 (206) 342 162

Treforest Unit Trust 2 - 2 -

1,177 (149) 339 162

Ormix B.V., a company incorporated in The Netherlands, owns 25% of the issued ordinary shares of
Hansteen Ormix B.V. The remaining 75% of the issued ordinary shares of Hansteen Ormix B.V. are owned
by Hansteen Netherlands B.V which is a wholly-owned subsidiary undertaking of Hansteen Holdings PLC.
Ormix B.V. is therefore considered to be a related party of the Group.

Purchases of services from Ormix B.V. were made at prices comparable with those paid by the Group for
similar services from unrelated parties. At 31 December 2010 the amounts outstanding in respect of
these trading transactions was £5,000 (2009: £nil).

Hansteen UK Industrial Property Limited Partnership, a UK limited partnership under the Limited
Partnership Act 1907, is a subsidiary of Hansteen UK Industrial Property Unit Trust. Hansteen UK
Industrial Property Unit Trust is an associate of Hansteen LP Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Hansteen Holdings PLC. Hansteen UK Industrial Property Limited Partnership is therefore considered to be
a related party of the Group. 

Provision of services to Hansteen UK Industrial Property Limited Partnership were made at prices
comparable to those that would be charged for similar services provided to unrelated parties. At 31
December 2010, the amount due in respect of these trading transactions was £342,000 (2009:
£162,000). In addition to the above, on 20 August 2010, Hansteen Property Investments Limited
transferred one of its properties, Vernon Park, to Hansteen UK Industrial Property Limited Partnership at
no gain no loss. This transaction was considered to be on an arm’s length basis. 

Treforest Unit Trust, a unit trust established in Jersey, is a subsidiary of Hansteen UK Industrial Property
Limited Partnership and is therefore considered to be a related party of the Group. 

Provision of services to Treforest Unit Trust were made at prices comparable to those that would be
charged for similar services provided to unrelated parties. At 31 December 2010, the amount due in
respect of these trading transactions was £2,000 (2009: £nil).

Remuneration of key management personnel

The aggregate remuneration of the Directors, who are the key management personnel of the Group, is
set out below, as required by IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’. Further information about the
remuneration of individual Directors is provided in the audited part of the Remuneration Report on pages
86 and 87.

2010 2009
£’000 £’000

Short-term employee benefits 1,438 1,116

Post-employment benefits 99 78

1,537 1,194
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b) Company

Transactions with subsidiaries

The Company enters into loans with its subsidiaries to provide long-term funding for their investment
activities. Interest is charged on these loans at LIBOR plus 1.75% (2009: 1.75%), EURIBOR plus 1.75%
(2009: 1.75%) or EURIBOR plus 1.10% (2009: nil) for Hansteen Germany Holdings S.à r.l.

The Company provides interest-free loans to Hansteen Land Limited, Hansteen Property Investments
Limited and Hansteen LP Limited to finance their operations.

The Company is charged management fees by its management subsidiary, Hansteen Limited which
undertakes day-to-day management of the Hansteen Group on behalf of the Company. Management
fees charged by Hansteen Limited to other subsidiaries of the Hansteen Group are recovered by the
Company on behalf of Hansteen Limited.

Surplus funds in subsidiary companies are loaned to the Company at EURIBOR plus 1.75% (2009: 1.75%)
or EURIBOR plus 1.10% (2009: nil) for Hansteen Germany Holdings S.à r.l.

A summary of the transactions with the subsidiaries is as follows:

2010 2009
£’000 £’000

Interest-bearing loans made to subsidiaries 6,651 63,204

Interest-bearing loans repaid by subsidiaries (65,474) (8,750)

Interest bearing loans made by subsidiaries (54,769) (16,332)

Interest-bearing loans repaid to subsidiaries 6,028 38,402

Interest-free loans made to subsidiaries 35,697 15,479

Interest-free loans repaid by subsidiaries (8,500) -

Loan fee disbursements recharged to subsidiaries 280 1,888

Interest income received in respect of interest-bearing loans 1,043 1,512

Interest paid in respect of interest-bearing loans (863) (634)

Management fees charged to the Company 1,015 615

Management fees charged to the Company and recharged to subsidiaries 5,275 3,380

The balances outstanding at the year end from transactions with subsidiaries are as follows:

2010 2009
£’000 £’000

Amounts due from subsidiaries included in trade and other receivables 102,338 131,238

Amounts due to subsidiaries included in trade and other payables (58,391) (10,104)

43,947 121,134

Remuneration of key management personnel

The aggregate remuneration of the Directors and key management personnel of the Company are
considered to be the same as for the Group.
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37 Financial instruments
Financial instruments comprise both financial assets and financial liabilities. The carrying value of these
financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair value.

Financial assets in the Group comprise interest rate swaps and caps, currency options and forward foreign
exchange contracts which are categorised as derivatives designated as fair value through the income
statement. Financial assets also include AFS financial assets, trade and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents which are classified as other financial assets. 

Financial liabilities in the Group comprise interest rate swaps and caps and forward foreign exchange
contracts which are categorised as derivatives designated as fair value through the income statement.
Financial liabilities also include borrowings, which are categorised as debt at amortised cost, and trade
and other payables, obligations under finance leases and current tax liabilities, which are classified as
other financial liabilities.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of derivative financial assets and financial liabilities are determined by independent experts
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models.

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings, the
obligations under finance leases, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of
the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings, all as disclosed in the balance sheet.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

Categories of financial instruments

2010 2009

Group Company Group Company
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

value value value value value value value value
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Financial assets

Designated as 
held for trading

Currency option 2,341 2,341 2,341 2,341 53 53 53 53

Interest rate caps 307 307 - - 163 163 6 6

2,648 2,648 2,341 2,341 216 216 59 59

Other financial assets

Trade and other 
receivables 24,110 24,110 104,862 104,862 11,339 11,339 133,631 133,631

Available for sale 1,946 1,946 1,946 1,946 9,511 9,511 9,511 9,511

Cash and cash 
deposits 67,442 67,442 47,434 47,434 100,970 100,970 87,253 87,253

93,498 93,498 154,242 154,242 121,820 121,820 230,395 230,395

Total 96,146 96,146 156,583 156,583 122,036 122,036 230,454 230,454
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2010 2009

Group Company Group Company
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

value value value value value value value value
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Financial liabilities

Designated as 
held for trading

Interest rate swaps (5,636) (5,636) (1,268) (1,268) (5,120) (5,120) (1,267) (1,267)

(5,636) (5,636) (1,268) (1,268) (5,120) (5,120) (1,267) (1,267)

At amortised cost

Secured bank 
loans (458,007) (458,007) - - (152,154) (152,154) - -

(458,007) (458,007) - - (152,154) (152,154) - -

Other financial 
liabilities

Trade and other 
payables (16,999) (16,999) (58,493) (58,493) (5,637) (5,637) (10,624) (10,624)

Obligations under 
finance leases (3,634) (3,634) - - (3,928) (3,928) - -

(20,633) (20,633) (58,493) (58,493) (9,565) (9,565) (10,624) (10,624)

Total (484,276) (484,276) (59,761) (59,761) (166,839) (166,839) (11,891) (11,891)

Net debt to equity ratio

The Group’s management reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual basis in conjunction with the
Board. As part of this review, management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital and debt.

The net debt to equity ratio at the year end is as follows:
2010 2009

£’000 £’000

Debt 461,641 156,082

Cash and cash equivalents (67,442) (100,970)

Net debt 394,199 55,112

Equity 379,371 379,571

Net debt to equity ratio 103.9% 14.5%

Carrying value of investment and trading properties 744,636 420,970

Net debt to value ratio 52.9% 13.1%

Debt is defined as borrowings and obligations under finance leases, as detailed in notes 27 and 28. 

Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition,
the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each
class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 3 to the financial
statements.
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37 Financial instruments
Financial risk management objectives

The Group monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group through
internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market
risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to
economically hedge these risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Group’s
policies approved by the Board of Directors. Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by
the Board and management on a continuous basis. The Group does not enter into or trade in financial
instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

The Group’s management reports quarterly to the Board and bi-annually to the Audit Committee, an
independent body that monitors risks and policies implemented to mitigate risk exposures.

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange
rates and interest rates. The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its
exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risk, including:

• interest rate swaps and caps to mitigate the risk of rising interest rates; and

• forward foreign exchange contracts and currency options to hedge the exchange rate risk arising
on translation of the Group’s investment in foreign operations which have the Euro as their
functional currency.

Foreign currency risk management

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency arises from the fact that there are foreign operations which
transact business denominated in Euros, with the translation of the local trading performance and local
net asset to Sterling for each financial period and at each balance sheet date giving rise to an exposure to
fluctuations in the Euro:Sterling exchange rate. The Group’s approach to managing this exposure is to
fund investments in Euro-denominated operations with equity that is covered by forward currency
contracts and options to limit the overall exposure of the Group. 

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary
liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

2010 2009
Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Gross currency assets 21,554 6,636 17,251 3,909

Gross currency liabilities (458,690) - (156,419) -

Net exposure (437,136) 6,636 (139,168) 3,909

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency of Belgium, France, Germany and The Netherlands (Euro
currency).

At 31 December 2010 the net assets of the Group were £379,221,000 (2009: £379,571,000) of which
£244,174,000 were denominated in Euros (2009: £274,564,000). At 31 December 2010 the Group had a
currency option in place to buy £140,840,000 Sterling for 200,000,000 Euros.  

It is estimated that, in relation to financial instruments alone, a 10% strengthening of sterling against  the
Euro, would have increased the net gain taken directly to equity for the year ended 31 December 2010
by £40,322,000 and increased profit before tax by £6,529,000. A 10% weakening of Sterling against the
Euro would have decreased the net gain taken directly to equity for the year ended 31 December 2010
by £49,282,000 and decreased profit before tax by £5,875,000.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010
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For the year ended 31 December 2009, a 10% strengthening of Sterling against the Euro would have
increased the net gain taken directly to equity by £12,654,000 and decreased profit before tax by
£7,962,000. A 10% weakening of Sterling against the Euro would have decreased the net gain taken
directly to equity by £15,466,000 and increased profit before tax by £9,732,000. 

However, the effect taken directly to equity would be more than offset by the effect of exchange rate
changes on the Euro denominated net assets included in the Group’s financial statements.

Forward currency options

On 22 September 2009, the Group entered into a currency option to buy £91.3m at a strike rate of
1.1655 !:£, which expired on 25 January 2010, at a premium of £0.6m. On 29 June 2010, the Group
entered into a three year currency option, at a premium of £4.5 million, which provides downside
protection should the Euro fall significantly against Sterling (move beyond !1.42 to the £) whilst at the
same time ensuring that the Group will fully benefit if the Euro appreciates in value.

Average Currency Contract Fair
exchange rates option value value

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
2010 2009 EUR’000 EUR’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Group and Company

Sell Euros 
buy Sterling - 1.1655 - (106,438) - 91,324 - 53

Sell Euros 
buy Sterling 1.4200 - (200,000) - 140,840 - 2,341 -

(200,000) (106,348) 140,840 91,324 2,341 53

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as entities in the Group borrow funds at floating interest rates.
The risk is managed by the Group by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate
borrowings, by the use of interest rate swap contracts and interest rate cap contracts. 

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the
liquidity risk management section of this note.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both
derivatives and non-derivative instruments during the year. 

Increase/(decrease) in profit/(loss) before tax 2010 2009
Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Increase interest rate by 1% 6,611 (193) (3,211) 829

Decrease interest rate by 1% (6,031) 33 6,889 958

There would have been no effect on amounts recognised directly in equity. 

Interest rate swap and cap contracts

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and
floating rate interest amounts calculated on agreed notional principal amounts. Such contracts enable the
Group to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on the fair value of issued fixed rate debt held and
the cash flow exposures on the issued variable rate debt held. 
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37 Financial instruments
Economic hedges to the cash flows

The following tables detail the notional principal amounts and remaining terms of interest rate swap and
cap contracts outstanding as at the reporting date:

Average contract fixed                 Notional principal
interest rate amount Fair value

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
% % EUR’000 EUR’000 £’000 £’000

Group

Interest rate swaps – 
outstanding receive floating 
pay fixed contracts:

In less than one year - 4.2 - 25,000 - (385)

In more than one year 
but less than two - 4.3 - 25,000 - (882) 

In more than two years 
but less than five 2.6 4.5 308,000 50,000 (5,636) (3,853)

308,000 100,000 (5,636) (5,120)

Interest rate caps – 
outstanding receive floating 
pay fixed contracts:

In less than one year 4.7 - 75,000 - - -

In more than one year 
but less than two - 4.7 - 75,000 - 6

In more than two years 
but less than five 5.7 5.0 102,000 50,000 307 -

177,000 125,000 307 6

Company

Interest rate swaps – 
outstanding receive floating 
pay fixed contracts:

In less than one year - 4.2 - 25,000 - (385)

In more than one year 
but less than two - 4.3 - 25,000 - (882) 

In more than two years 
but less than five 2.6 - 50,000 - (1,268) -

50,000 50,000 (1,268) (1,267)

Interest rate caps – 
outstanding receive floating 
pay fixed contracts:

In less than one year 4.7 - 75,000 - - -

In more than one year 
but less than two - 4.7 - 75,000 - 6

75,000 75,000 - 6
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The average interest rate is based on the outstanding balances at the end of the financial period.

The interest rate swaps settle on a quarterly basis. The floating rate on the interest rate swaps is three
months EURIBOR. The Group settles the difference between the fixed and floating interest rate on a net
basis.

Under interest rate caps the Group pays a premium to limit its exposure to floating interest rates to a
fixed upper limit determined at the time the interest rate cap contract is entered into.

The interest rate caps settle on a quarterly basis. The floating rate on the interest rate caps is three
months EURIBOR. If the floating rate exceeds the capped rate the Group receives the difference between
the fixed and capped interest rate on a net basis.

The Group does not apply hedge accounting for any transaction and records the derivatives at fair value
with the changes in fair value included in the income statement.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. 

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is £91,552,000 (2009: £112,309,000) comprising trade and
other receivables and cash and cash deposits. The Group’s principal credit risk is attributable primarily to
its trade receivables of £4,171,000 (2009: £1,860,000) which consist principally of rents due from
tenants. The balance is low relative to both the current and net assets of the Group and the Company.

Potential customers are evaluated for creditworthiness and where necessary collateral is secured. There is
no concentration of credit risk within the portfolio to either geographical business segment or company
as the Group has a well spread diverse customer base with no one customer accounting for more than
3% (2009: 3%) of the gross rent roll. 

Other receivables consist principally of property purchase deposits held in client accounts at solicitors and
tax and VAT receivables. These items do not give rise to significant credit risk. 

Cash deposits are held at banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which monitors
the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements on a regular
basis. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve
borrowing facilities. As at 31 December 2010 the Group had additional undrawn committed borrowing
facilities of £9,426,000 (2009: £112,839,000) at its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest dates on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.

Weighted
2010 Maturity average effective Less than One to Two to More than

interest rate one year two years five years five years Total
% £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Group

Non-interest bearing - 12,851 - - - 12,851

Variable rate debt instruments 2.31 13,430 13,257 465,032 10,924 502,643

Finance lease liability 4.75 330 330 990 1,984 3,634

26,611 13,587 466,022 12,908 519,128

Company

Non-interest bearing - 102 - - - 102

Variable rate debt instruments 2.54 58,391 - - - 58,391

58,493 - - - 58,493
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010

37 Financial instruments

Weighted
2009 Maturity average effective Less than One to Two to More than

interest rate one year two years five years five years Total
% £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Group

Non-interest bearing - 5,637 - - - 5,637

Variable rate debt instruments 2.12 4,988 5,529 143,874 12,486 166,877

Finance lease liability 4.75 342 342 1,027 4,008 5,719

10,967 5,871 144,901 16,494 178,233

Company

Non-interest bearing - 1,828 - - - 1,828

Variable rate debt instruments 1.94 8,796 - - - 8,796

10,624 - - - 10,624

The following table details the Group’s expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including
interest that will be earned on those assets except where the Group anticipates that the cash flow will
occur in a different period.

Weighted
2010 Maturity average effective Less than One to Two to More than

interest rate one year two years five years five years Total
% £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Group

Non-interest bearing - 24,110 - - - 24,110

Variable interest rate instruments 0.18 67,442 - - - 67,442

91,552 - - - 91,552

Company

Non-interest bearing - 2,524 - - - 2,524

Variable interest rate instruments 1.76 149,772 - - - 149,772

152,296 - - - 152,296

Weighted
2009 Maturity average effective Less than One to Two to More than

interest rate one year two years five years five years Total
% £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Group

Non-interest bearing - 11,339 - - - 11,339

Variable interest rate instruments 0.33 100,970 - - - 100,970

112,309 - - - 112,309

Company

Non-interest bearing - 23,828 - - - 23,828

Variable interest rate instruments 1.35 197,097 - - - 197,097

220,885 - - - 220,885
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The following table details the Group’s liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted net cash inflows/(outflows) on the derivative instrument
that settle on a net basis and the undiscounted gross inflows and (outflows) on those derivatives that
require gross settlement. When the amount payable or receivable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has
been determined by reference to the interest and foreign currency rates as at the reporting date.

2010 Maturity Less than One to Two to More than
one year two years five years five years Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Group

Net settled:

Interest rate swaps (4,464) (4,464) (6,352) - (15,280)

Company

Net settled:

Interest rate swaps (716) (716) (746) - (2,178)

2009 Maturity Less than One to Two to More than
one year two years five years five years Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Group

Net settled:

Interest rate swaps (2,757) (1,825) (2,395) - (6,977)

Company

Net settled:

Interest rate swaps (1,067) (135) - - (1,202)

In accordance with the amendments to IFRS 7, the Group has categorised its financial instruments into a
three level hierarchy based on the priority of the inputs to the valuation technique. The fair value
hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs used to measure fair value
fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the category level is based on the lowest priority level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement of the instrument in its entirety.

Fair value Quoted prices
measurement of in active market Significant Significant

of derivative for identical other observable unobservable
at 31 December assets inputs inputs

2010 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Description of £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

financial instrument

Interest rate swaps (5,636) - (5,636) -

Interest rate caps 307 - 307 -

Currency option 2,341 - 2,341 -

Available for sale financial assets 1,946 1,946 - -
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The Directors present their Annual Report and the audited financial statements of the Company and the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2010. The Corporate Governance Statement set out on pages 80 to 83 forms
part of this report. 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 
The Company is the parent company of a Group whose principal activities comprise property investment,
development, management and associated business, focussing on industrial property investments in Continental
Europe and the UK, although it will also seek to profit from opportunistic acquisitions in other property sectors
both in the UK and abroad. 

The subsidiary undertakings principally affecting the profits or net assets of the Group in the year are listed in
note 19 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW 
Hansteen’s focus is on UK and Continental European industrial investments which in the opinion of the Board
have high yields along with cheap financing costs. To date these investments have been primarily in the UK,
Belgium, France, Germany and the Netherlands. A smaller part of the Group’s activity is dedicated to
opportunistic property investment opportunities which to date have included land and residential investments.
More detailed information about the Group’s business, activities and financial performance is incorporated into
this report by reference and can be found in the Chairman’s Statement and the Joint Chief Executive’s Review
and the Finance Review on pages 4 to 16.

There are no further matters to report under section 417 of the Companies Act 2006. 

RESULTS 
The results for the year ended 31 December 2010 are shown in the income statement on page 17 of the financial
statements. As shown on page 17 the pre-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2010 was £33.2 million
(2009: £21.3 million) and the net assets are shown in the balance sheet as £380.2 million (2009: £380.2 million).
The diluted EPRA NAV per share was 86p (2009: 84p). In the Directors’ view the pre-tax losses and diluted EPRA
NAV growth are the most appropriate performance measures for the Group.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
The Directors consider the following to be key performance indicators (KPIs), as disclosed in the Chairman’s
Statement and Joint Chief Executives’ Review:

Key performance indicator 2010 2009 

Normalised profit £24.0m £15.4m

Net asset value (NAV) (per share) 84p 84p

EPRA NAV (per share) 86p 84p

Annualised rental income £59.6m £36.1m

Net debt to value 53% 13%

Dividend (per share) 3.5p 3.2p

Yield 8.0% 8.6%

Occupancy 78% 84%

Directors’ Report
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DIVIDEND 
On 6 July 2010, the Company declared it would pay two dividends a year. For the year ended 31 December
2010, an interim dividend of 1.4p per share was paid on 25 November 2010, of which 0.56p was a PID. The
second dividend of 2.1p per share will be payable on 26 May 2011 to shareholders on the register on 3 May
2011.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
The UK Government announced a future decrease in the UK corporation tax rate from 27.0% to 24.0% over the
next three years. The impact of the proposed rate change is not material to the Group. 

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
The Board agrees and reviews policies and financial instruments for risk management. Further information on
financial instruments is contained in note 37 to the financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 
Risk management is an important part of the Group’s system of internal controls. Senior management staff and
the Board regularly consider the significant risks, which it believes are facing the Group, identify appropriate
controls and if necessary instigate action to improve those controls. There will always be some risk when
undertaking property investments but the control process is aimed at mitigating and minimising these risks
where possible. The key risks identified by the Board, the steps taken to mitigate them and additional
commentary is as follows:

• Changes in the general economic environment exposes the Group to a number of risks including falls
in the value of  its property investments, loss of rental income and increased vacant property costs
due to the failure of tenants to renew or extend leases as well as the increased potential for tenants to
become bankrupt. The Board believes these risks are reduced due to its policy of assembling a
portfolio with a wide spread of different tenancies in terms of actual tenants, industry type and
geographical location as well as undertaking thorough due diligence on acquisitions. The level of
exposure to individual tenants is regularly monitored to ensure they are within manageable limits.
Rent deposits or bank guarantees are requested where appropriate to mitigate against the effect of
tenant defaults. Where possible, purchases are achieved at low capital values and with due
investigation of tenant finances.

• A further significant risk relates to the Group’s treasury operations. Over-borrowing by the Group,
insufficient credit facilities, significant interest rate increases or facility covenant breaches could
represent a significant risk to the Group. In response to these risks Hansteen maintains a prudent
approach to its borrowing levels by seeking to maintain headroom within its debt facilities. The Board
actively monitors current debt and equity levels as well as considering the future levels of debt and
equity to sustain the business. Loan covenants are monitored on a regular basis and compliance
certificates are prepared. For all money borrowed consideration is given to securing the appropriate
hedging instruments to protect against increases in interest rates.

• By investing in property in mainland Europe the Group is exposed to a foreign currency exchange rate
risk. In response to this risk the Group’s borrowings are in Euro denominated loan facilities and
therefore, to the extent that investments are financed by debt, a self hedging mechanism is in place.
In relation to the equity element of the Group’s Euro investments the Board monitors the level of
exposure on a regular basis and considers the level and timing of when to take out the appropriate
hedging instruments to cover this exposure. 

Directors’ Report
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• A further risk identified by the Board encompasses environmental risks. In addition to the need to act
as a responsible landlord there may, in some circumstances, be occasions when pollution on a site
owned by a property investment company becomes its responsibility. Each acquisition undertaken by
the Group includes an environmental report from a specialist consultancy. These reports may
highlight the need for further investigation and in some cases remediation. The Group’s policy is then
to either undertake such investigations or remediation or potentially reject the purchase as no longer
viable.

• Following conversion to a REIT during the prior year, the Board considers the loss of REIT status and
payment of additional corporation tax as a risk to the Group. Loss of REIT status and payment of
additional corporation tax would arise from a breach of REIT compliance requirements. Breach of
certain limits imposed by REIT legislation may be mitigated through regular review of the Group’s
actual and forecast performance against REIT regime requirements. Management have sufficient
discretion to manage and meet the REIT requirements and apply mitigating actions where required. 

GOING CONCERN 
The Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and
position as well as the financial position of the Group, its cash flows, liquidity position and the borrowing facilities
are described in the Joint Chief Executives’ Report and the Finance Review on pages 9 to 16. In addition note 37
to the financial statements includes the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital; its
financial risk management objectives; details of its financial instruments and hedging activities; and its exposures
to credit risk and liquidity risk. 

The Group has a good debt maturity profile with long-term funding in place. The current economic conditions
have created uncertainty as to the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group as noted above. In light of
these risks the Group has considered its forecast cash flows and forecast covenant compliance taking into
account:

• the impact on the various loan covenants of further reductions in the property valuations, decline in
rental income and increase in interest rates; and

• the potential impacts of the current economic uncertainty over the Group’s operating cash flow
generation, including tenancy failures and increased vacancies.

These forecasts show that the Group has sufficient headroom and available finance to manage its business risks
successfully despite the current uncertain economic outlook. Based on this assessment, the Directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
Annual Report and Accounts.

SHARE CAPITAL 
Details of the issued share capital, together with details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital
during the year are shown in note 30. The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to
fixed income. Each share carries the right to one vote at general meetings of the Company.  

There are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding nor on the transfer of shares, which are both governed
by the general provisions of the Articles of Association and prevailing legislation.  

The Directors are not aware of any agreements between holders of the Company’s shares that may result in
restrictions on the transfer of securities or on voting rights. 

Details of employee share schemes are set out in note 34. 

No person has any special rights of control over the Company’s share capital and all issued shares are fully paid.
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DIRECTORS AND THEIR INTERESTS 
The Directors who served throughout the year and to the date of this report, except where specified, were as
follows:

J D Hambro Non-Executive Chairman 

I R Watson Joint Chief Executive

M L Jones Joint Chief Executive

R P Lowes Finance Director Appointed 18 October 2010

S T Gee Non-Executive Director

R S Mully Non-Executive Director

R R Cotton Non-Executive Director Appointed 18 October 2010

H J M Price Non-Executive Director Appointed 18 October 2010

With regard to the appointment and replacement of Directors, the Company is governed by its Articles of
Association, the Companies Acts and related legislation. The Articles themselves may be amended by special
resolution of the shareholders. 

Messrs J D Hambro and I R Watson will retire and submit themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

J D Hambro is Chairman of J O Hambro Capital Management Group Limited. Director of Primary Health
Properties PLC,  and was Non-Executive Chairman of Ashtenne from 1997 until 2005

I R Watson qualified as a solicitor with Gouldens. Founder Director and Joint Chief Executive of Ashtenne from
1989 to 2005.

R P Lowes, R R Cotton and H J M Price will also submit themselves for re-election, in accordance with the
Articles of Association.

The beneficial interests of the Directors in the ordinary shares of the Company are as follows:

Ordinary shares Ordinary shares
of 10p each at of 10p each at

31 December 2010 31 December 2009

M L Jones 4,200,000 4,200,000

I R Watson 4,200,000 4,200,000

R P Lowes* 500,000 - 

J D Hambro 275,000 275,000  

S T Gee 200,000 200,000

R S Mully 375,000 375,000

R R Cotton** 100,000 -

H J M Price** 100,000 -

9,950,000 9,250,000

* 500,000 shares in the Company held prior to appointment on 18 October 2010

** Shares in the Company purchased subsequent to appointment on 18 October 2010

Directors’ Report
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None of the Directors had any interests in any material contract during the year relating to the business of the
Group. There have been no changes to the Directors’ interests subsequent to the year end. 

Subject to the Company’s Memorandum of Association, the Articles, any legislation and any directions given by
special resolution, the business of the Company will be managed by the Directors, who may exercise all the
powers of the Company, whether relating to the management of the business of the Company or not. In
particular, the Board may exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow money and to mortgage or charge
any of its undertakings, property, assets and uncalled capital and to issue debentures and other securities and
give security for any debt, liability or obligation of the Company to any third party.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES 
The Company has made qualifying third-party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its Directors which were
made during the year and remain in force at the date of this report.

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL 
OF THE COMPANY 
The Company has been notified of the following interests that represent 3% or more of the issued share capital
of the Company as at 21 March 2011.

No. of ordinary
shares held Percentage

BlackRock Inc. 49,383,037 10.89

Jupiter Asset Management Limited 26,192,606 5.77

Lloyds TSB Group plc – Scottish Widows 24,791,592 5.46

Baillie Gifford 21,410,786 4.72

Aberforth Partners 18,791,789 4.14

Legal & General Group plc 17,433,818 3.84

M&G Investment Management 17,190,075 3.79

Ruffer 16,829,990 3.71

Taube Hodson Stonex Partners LLP 
on behalf of client funds that it manages or controls 14,825,919 3.27

Threadneedle Investments 13,736,100 3.03

220,585,812 48.62

PAYMENT POLICY FOR CREDITORS
The Group’s policy is to settle all agreed liabilities within the terms established with suppliers. At 31 December
2010 there were five days’ purchases outstanding (2009: eight days) in respect of the Company’s trade creditors. 

CHARITABLE AND POLITICAL DONATIONS 
During the year, the Group made charitable donations of £nil (2009: £nil) to charities serving the communities in
which the Group operates. There were no political donations in the year (2009: £nil).
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AUDITORS 
So far as the Directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined by Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006) of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and each Director has taken all the steps
that he ought to have taken as a Director in order to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006.

Deloitte LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditors and a resolution to reappoint them
will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Approved by the Board of Directors 

and signed on behalf of the Board

R P Lowes
Company Secretary
22 March 2011

Directors’ Report
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The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors are required to prepare the group financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and have
also chosen to prepare the parent company financial statements under IFRSs as adopted by the EU. Under
company law the Directors must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing
these financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that directors:

• properly select and apply accounting policies;

• present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information; 

• provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are
insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and
conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial performance; and

• make an assessment of the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

• the financial statements, prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards,
give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company
and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole; and

• the Chairman’s Statement, the Joint Chief Executives’ Review and the Finance Review, which are
incorporated into the Directors’ Report, include a fair review of the development and performance of
the business and the position of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

By order of the Board

I R WATSON M L JONES
Director Director
22 March 2011

Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities
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We have audited the financial statements of Hansteen Holdings PLC for the year ended 31 December 2010
which comprise the Consolidated income statement, the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
Group and Company balance sheets, the Group and Company statements of changes in equity, the Group and
Company cash flow statements and the related notes 1 to 37. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union and, as regards the parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the "nancial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s
and the Parent Company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors; and the overall presentation of the
financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to
identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If we become aware of any apparent
material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on "nancial statements
In our opinion:

• the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent
Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2010 and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended;

• the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union;

• the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 2006; and

• the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

Independent Auditors’ Report
to the members of Hansteen Holdings PLC
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Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion:

• the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006; and

• the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following:

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

• the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
audited are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

• certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review:

• the Directors’ Statement, contained within the Directors’ Report, in relation to going concern; 

• the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company’s compliance with the nine
provisions of the June 2008 Combined Code specified for our review; and

• certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on Directors’ remuneration.

Kerr Mitchell (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Reading, United Kingdom
22 March 2011
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Rodgau, Germany
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
Section 1 of the Combined Code on Corporate
Governance that was issued in June 2008 by the
Financial Reporting Council (‘the Combined Code’), as
appended to the Listing Rules, and available at
www.frc.org.uk, sets out the Principles of Good
Corporate Governance which are applicable to listed
companies incorporated in the United Kingdom. The
Board is committed to high standards of risk
management and internal control and, as such,
supports the principles of Corporate Governance set
out in the Combined Code. The way in which it applies
these principles is set out below and in the Report of
the Remuneration Committee on page 84.

Given the size of the Group and the centralised nature
of its operations which are under the direct supervision
of management, the Committee does not believe that
an internal audit function is merited at this time but will
continue to monitor this position. The Board is
currently considering the implementation of a formal
process of evaluating the effectiveness of the Board,
its committees and its Directors on an annual basis.
Such a review has not been performed during the year.
Except for the matters noted above, the Company has
been in compliance with the Code Provisions set out in
Section 1 of the Combined Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2010. The Company complies
with the Corporate Governance Statement
requirements pursuant to the FSA’s Disclosure and
Transparency Rules by virtue of the information
included in this Corporate Governance section of the
Annual Report and Accounts together with information
contained in the Directors’ Report on pages 69 to 74
and the Report of the Remuneration Committee on
pages 84 to 87. The size of the Board increased during
the year following the appointment of a further
Executive Director and two further Non-Executive
Directors. 

Following the publication of the new UK Corporate
Governance Code during the year, the Board has
reviewed the provisions of the new Code and will
implement the relevant changes as necessary.

A summary of the system of governance adopted by
the Company follows:

RELATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS 
The Executive Directors regularly meet with
institutional shareholders and analysts. Private
investors are also encouraged to meet with the Board
and to participate in the Annual General Meeting. The
Chairmen of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration
Committees are available to answer questions, where
appropriate, at the Annual General Meeting.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Details of the Directors are set out on pages 66 and
67. The Board consists of five independent Non-
Executive Directors, including the Chairman, and three
Executive Directors. The roles and responsibilities of
the Chairman, Executive Directors and Non-Executive
Directors are clearly defined. The Board is satisfied
that the Non-Executive Directors, each of whom is
independent from management and has no
commercial or other connection with the Company, are
able to exercise independent judgement. The
appointment of new directors is a matter for the Board
as a whole. The Board is responsible to shareholders
of the Company for the strategy and future
development of the Group and the efficient
management of its resources. As a result, the Board
has a schedule of matters reserved for its decision,
which includes approval of annual budgets, acquisition
and divestment policy, approval of major capital
projects, the raising of finance and management
policies. The Board is supplied, in a timely fashion,
with the information it needs to enable it to discharge
its duties. The Board is also kept informed of changes
in relevant legislation and changing commercial risks,
and each Director has access to independent
professional advice and the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. All Directors are required to
submit themselves for re-election by rotation at least
every three years. 

The schedule below sets out the number of principal
Board and Committee meetings held during the year
ended 31 December 2010 together with individual
attendance by Board Members at those meetings.

Corporate Governance
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The Board has the following standing Committees:

Nomination Committee 
The Nomination Committee comprises R S Mully
(Chairman), J D Hambro, S T Gee, R R Cotton, H J M
Price, I R Watson, M L Jones and R P Lowes. R R
Cotton, H J M Price and R P Lowes were appointed
during the year. The Committee is responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board and for making recommendations in respect of
any changes and appointments. The Committee met
twice during the year to discuss the expansion of the
Board and the appointment of additional Executive
and Non-Executive Directors. The Committee
considered whether it was necessary to appoint an
external advisor in order to identify appropriate
candidates. After discussion it was decided the
Committee would conduct an internal review utilising
known contacts and intelligence to identify appropriate
candidates. Having conducted such review the
Committee identified two outstanding potential
candidates (Humphrey Price and Richard Cotton) and
agreed that they would be approached directly.

Remuneration Committee 
The Remuneration Committee comprises J D Hambro
(Chairman), R R Cotton and R S Mully. S T Gee
resigned during the year and R R Cotton was

appointed. It is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on all aspects of
remuneration policy for Executive Directors. The
Committee’s report is set out on pages 84 to 87.

Audit Committee 
The Audit Committee comprises S T Gee (Chairman), J
D Hambro and H J M Price. R S Mully resigned during
the year and H J M Price was appointed. Senior
representatives of the external auditors, Executive
Directors and senior management may be invited to
attend the meetings. The Audit Committee is
responsible for ensuring that management has
systems and procedures in place to ensure the
integrity of financial information. The Committee
maintains an appropriate relationship with the Group’s
external auditors and reviews the effectiveness,
objectivity and independence of the external auditors
and considers both the scope of their work and the
fees paid to them for audit and non-audit services. The
Committee monitors the Company’s internal audit
requirements, internal financial controls and the audit
process. The Committee also reviews the interim and
full year financial statements prior to their submission
to the Board, the application of the Group’s
accounting policies and any changes to financial
reporting requirements, in addition to undertaking a
review of the Group’s risks on a bi-annual basis and
acting as a Risk Committee.

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee

J D Hambro 10 3 2 2

M L Jones 10 - 2 -

I R Watson 10 - 2 -

R P Lowes* 1 - - -

S T Gee 10 3 2 2

R S Mully 10 3 2 2

R R Cotton* 1 - - -

H J M Price* 1 1 - -

Number of meetings during the year 10 3 2 2

* Appointed on 18 October 2010 
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The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee are
available on the Company’s website
www.hansteen.co.uk.

INTERNAL CONTROL 
An ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the most significant risks faced by the
Group has been in place throughout the year and up to
the date of approval of the Annual Report and
Accounts. That process which accords with the
Turnbull guidance and the Board’s review of that
process is set out below. 

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
Group’s system of internal controls, including the
review of its effectiveness and suitable monitoring
procedures, in order to safeguard shareholders’
investment and the assets of the Group as well as the
integrity of its accounting records and provide reliable
information for use within the business and for
publication. The Directors acknowledge that such a
system is designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
can provide only reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. 

The Directors have reviewed, as part of the year-end
procedures, the effectiveness of the system of internal
control for the period under review and up to the date
of this report, the key element of which is a risk
management process whereby key risks to achieving
our objectives and strategy as well as related controls
and monitoring procedures in respect of those controls
are identified in a risk register. At each Audit
Committee the risk register is reviewed and updated
where appropriate and reports received from the
executive on control procedures, and any areas for
improvement are agreed for subsequent action.

This process is supported by:

Management structure
There is a clear organisational structure with well-
defined lines of reporting and responsibility.

Financial reporting 
There are management reporting disciplines including
performance monitoring and profit and cash
forecasting.

Investment appraisal 
The Group has a clearly defined framework for capital
and development expenditure and subsequent on-
going appraisals.

In addition, the key internal controls include regular
meetings of the Board and Audit Committee whose
overall responsibilities are set out above.

During the course of its reviews of the system of
internal control, the Board has not identified nor been
advised of any failings or weaknesses which it has
determined to be significant. Therefore a confirmation
in respect of necessary actions has not been
considered appropriate.  

External auditors 
The Company’s external auditors are Deloitte LLP. The
audit partner responsible for the Company’s audit
matters is changed every five years in accordance with
the Ethical Standards issued by the Auditing Practices
Board. In forming their opinion on the independence
and objectivity of the external auditors, the Audit
Committee takes into account the safeguards
operating within Deloitte LLP. Under the Company’s
policy governing the provision of non-audit services by
the external auditors, they may not provide a service
which places them in a position where they may be
required to audit their own work.

Specifically, they are precluded from providing
services relating to bookkeeping or other services
relating to accounting records or financial statements
of the Company, financial information system design
and implementation, appraisal or evaluation services,
actuarial services, any management functions,
investment banking services, legal services unrelated
to the audit, remuneration related services or
advocacy services. 

During 2010, services provided by Deloitte LLP and
their associates to the Company, in addition to acting
as external auditors, included acting as reporting
accountants in respect of the HBI acquisition, and UK
and overseas income tax, VAT and property tax
advisory services. To fulfil its responsibilities regarding
the external auditors, the Committee reviewed:

• the scope of the audit as set out in the external
auditors’ engagement letter for the forthcoming
year;

Corporate Governance
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• the external auditors’ overall work plan for the
forthcoming year;

• the external auditors’ fee proposal;

• a report from the external auditors describing
their arrangements to ensure objectivity and to
identify, report and manage any conflicts of
interest; and

• the extent of non-audit services provided by the
external auditors to ensure that they are not
placed in a position to audit their own work.

Where non-audit services are provided, the fees are
based on the work undertaken and are not success
related. Consideration is given to the nature of and
remuneration received for other services provided by
Deloitte LLP to the Company and confirmation is
sought from them that the fee payable for the annual
audit is adequate to enable them to perform their
obligations in accordance with the scope of the audit.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the briefing paper
on effective communication between audit committees
and external auditors issued by the Auditing Practices
Board. Having considered the recommendations of the
briefing paper in respect of the external auditors, the
Audit Committee has concluded that the relationship
with Deloitte LLP meets the recommendations.
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This report has been prepared in accordance with
Section 421 of the Companies Act 2006. The report
also meets the relevant requirements of the Listing
Rules of the Financial Services Authority and
describes how the Board has applied the Principles of
Good Governance relating to Directors’ remuneration.

The Regulations require the auditors to report to the
Company’s members on the ‘auditable part’ of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report and to state whether
in their opinion that part of the report has been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006 (as amended by the Regulations). The report
has therefore been divided into separate sections for
unaudited and audited information.

UNAUDITED INFORMATION
a) !e Remuneration Committee (the ‘Committee’)
The Committee, which is constituted in accordance
with the Combined Code, comprises J D Hambro
(Chairman), R R Cotton and R S Mully. S T Gee
resigned during the year and R R Cotton was
appointed.  The Committee meets regularly and no
less than twice a year to consider and establish or
recommend to the Board, Company policy and the
remuneration of the Executive Directors. In addition,
the Committee also administers the Company’s long-
term incentive plan and share option scheme.

b) Remuneration policy
In determining an appropriate remuneration policy for
Executives the Committee’s objective is to attract,
retain and motivate experienced and high-calibre
individuals, who are committed to achieving the
Company’s corporate goals and achieving consistently
high performance in its sector.

In implementing the policy, the Committee takes into
account remuneration packages available within other
companies, including property companies,
comparable to Hansteen, as well as the Group’s
overall financial performance.

The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors is
determined by the Board within limits set out in the
Articles of Association.

There are four main elements of the remuneration
package for Executive Directors:

• Basic annual salary and benefits.

• Annual bonus payments, which may be up to
100% of basic salary.

• Long-term incentive plans.

• Pension arrangements.

The Company’s policy is that a substantial proportion
of the remuneration of the Executive Directors should
be performance-related. As described below,
Executive Directors may earn annual bonus payments
of up to 100% of their basic salary together with the
benefits of participation in long-term incentive plans.

Executive Directors are not entitled to accept
appointments outside the Company without the prior
written consent of the Board, such consent not to be
unreasonably withheld.

Hansteen’s move to the FTSE Main Market from AIM in
2009 significantly increased the external
responsibilities associated with the Joint Chief
Executive roles.  However, given the volatile market
conditions prevailing at that time, the Committee felt it
was appropriate to defer a full review of the
remuneration package for the Joint Chief Executives
until market conditions were more stable. A full
independent review of Executive Director remuneration
arrangements will, therefore, be commissioned by the
Committee during 2011. In advance of the review, no
changes were made to incentive arrangements for
2010.  The Committee recognises that these salary
levels remain significantly below mid-market and may
well require adjustment following the review in order to
fully reflect the enhanced nature of these roles.

c) Remuneration of Executive Directors
The remuneration packages for the Executive Directors
include the following elements:

i) Basic salary and benefits

Basic salaries for Executive Directors and other
senior executives are reviewed by the Committee,
normally annually, or otherwise on promotion
having regard to competitive market practice and
also to Group and individual performance. Current
benefits include a company allowance, medical
insurance and life assurance cover and permanent
health insurance cover.

Report of the 
Remuneration Committee
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ii) Annual performance-related bonus

The Executive Directors are entitled to a
performance-related bonus each year based on
criteria set annually by the Committee to reward
excellent financial performance and the
achievement of strategic objectives that would
meet the expectations of investors as at the
beginning of the year.

The amount payable to the Executive Directors in
any one year is up to 100% of their salary.

Currently up to 50% of salary is payable to the
Executive Directors as a bonus assuming the pre-
tax profits and occupancy levels in the year
exceed budgets. Additionally up to 50% of salary
is payable to the Executive Directors as a bonus
assuming the Committee considers that the
strategic objectives for the year have been
achieved.

iii) Long-Term Incentive Plans

The Executive Directors are entitled to a bonus
payment linked to Company performance. The
bonus payable will depend on the Company’s NAV
growth per share exceeding a compound growth
rate of 10% per annum (‘Target NAV’) in the three
years ended 31 December 2012. For the purposes
of the incentive scheme NAV is taken to be the
fully diluted EPRA NAV definition. To the extent
that NAV per ordinary share (including dividends
and other returns to shareholders) exceeds Target
NAV per share, 12.5% of such excess multiplied
by the number of ordinary shares in issue on 31
December 2009 will be payable to each of the
Executive Directors as a bonus. This bonus
scheme will be repeated to reward performance in
each subsequent three-year period commencing
on 1 January 2013, with the relevant dates for
determining the figures to calculate the bonus
altering to accurately reflect each three-year
period.

Any amount payable under the Long-Term
Incentive Plan is to be satisfied in full by the issue
of ordinary shares of the Company to any relevant
Executive Director. The price per share to be used
when determining the number of shares which an
Executive Director is entitled to pursuant to the
Long-Term Incentive Plan shall be the average
mid-market quotation for such shares on the Main
Market for the first 20 dealing days immediately

following the end of the relevant period (being the
period ended 31 December 2012 and thereafter
each subsequent three-year period commencing
on 1 January 2013).

iv) Share Options

At the absolute discretion of the Board, Executive
Directors may be allowed to participate in such
share schemes as the Company may operate and
upon such terms as the Board may from time to
time determine subject to and in accordance with
the rules of such schemes.

v) Pensions

The Company makes contributions equivalent to
16% of their basic salaries to the self-
administered pension fund of the I R Watson and
M L Jones. The Company makes a contribution
equivalent to 8% of the basic salary to the self-
administered pension fund of R P Lowes.

d) Performance graph
In response to the UK Real Estate Investment Trust
(REIT) legislation, with effect from 1 December 2009
FTSE Group reclassified the Real Estate Sector into
the FTSE All-Share Real Estate Investment Trusts
Index and the FTSE All-Share Real Estate Investment
& Services Index. 

Hansteen converted to a REIT with effect from 6
October 2009. The following graph compares
Hansteen’s total shareholder return (TSR) to a
composite of the two new FTSE Real Estate indices.
TSR measures share price growth, with dividends
deemed to be reinvested on the ex-dividend date.
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Prior to 6 October 2009, the index used for
comparison is the FTSE All-Share Real Estate
Investment & Services Index (which up until that point
Hansteen would have been a constituent member of).
From 6 October 2009, the index used for comparison
is the FTSE All-Share Real Estate Investment Trusts
Index, to reflect Hansteen’s conversion into a REIT
with effect from that date. These indices have been
chosen by the committee as they are considered the
most appropriate benchmarks against which to assess
the relative performance of the company for this
purpose. The graph is based on underlying data
provided by Thomson Reuters Datastream.

e) Directors’ contracts
It is the Company’s policy that Executive Directors
should have contracts with an indefinite term providing
for a maximum of one year’s notice. However, it may
be necessary occasionally to offer longer notice
periods to new directors.

The service contracts of I R Watson and M L Jones are
both dated 22 November 2005 and the service
contract of R P Lowes is dated 18 October 2010. The
Directors’ contracts continue until terminated by not

less than 12 months’ written notice. In the event of
termination by the Company, the Directors’ contracts
provide for compensation in lieu of notice of an
amount equal to the basic salary and other contractual
entitlements over the immediately preceding 12 month
period and shall be subject to deductions for income
tax and national insurance contributions as
appropriate.

The Non-Executive Directors each have specific terms
of engagement and do not have service contracts with
the Company. The Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and reappointment at the Annual General
Meeting.

The remuneration of Non-Executive Directors,
including the Chairman, is determined by the Board as
a whole.

Messrs J D Hambro and I R Watson will retire and
submit themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting. In addition, Messrs R C
Cotton, H J M Price and R P Lowes will submit
themselves for re-election, in accordance with the
Articles of Association. 

Report of the 
Remuneration Committee

AUDITED INFORMATION
a) Aggregate Directors’ remuneration

2010 2009
£’000 £’000

Emoluments 1,260 996
Money purchase pension contributions 99 78
Total 1,359 1,074

b) Directors’ emoluments
Performance

Basic Car related Benefits 2010 2009
salary allowance bonus in kind Fees Total Total
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Executive Directors
M L Jones 300 30 263 7 - 600 497
I R Watson 300 30 263 11 - 604 499
R P Lowes* 36 3 16 1 - 56 -

Non-Executive Directors
J D Hambro - - - - 75 75 60
S T Gee - - - - 45 45 30
R S Mully - - - - 40 40 30
R R Cotton* - - - - 9 9 -
H J M Price* - - - - 9 9 -
Total 636 63 542 19 178 1,438 1,116

* Appointed on 18 October 2010
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Benefits in kind represent the deemed monetary value
of the use of company cars, health care and life
insurance provided by the Group. 

The fees of Mr S T Gee were paid to Wallace Clifton
Limited.

c) Long-Term Incentive Plan 
The Committee reviewed the potential liability of the
Group to payments which would fall due under the
current three-year Long-Term Incentive Plan which
ends on 31 December 2012. Projections for the Group
were reviewed using the existing internal budgets and
the proposed investment programme. Using
assumptions of current interest rates, current
exchange rates and current property yields liability
under the scheme is estimated to be £nil (2009: £nil).
No grants have been made to Directors during the
year. 

d) Directors’ pension entitlements
Three directors are members of money purchase
pension schemes. The Group made contributions of
£48,000 (2009: £39,200) to the self-administered
pension fund of Mr I R Watson, contributions of
£48,000 (2009: £39,200) to the self-administered
pension fund of Mr M L Jones and £2,900 to the self-
administered fund pension fund of Mr R P Lowes.

e) Directors’ share options
The 2005 Share Option Scheme is open to certain
senior employees of the Group. In the case of options
granted within three months of admission of shares to
trading on AIM, options are exercisable at the price at
which shares were placed in connection with the float,
being £1 per share. All options granted after this date
are exercisable at a price equal to the average quoted
market price of the ordinary shares of Hansteen
Holdings PLC on the date of grant. The options have a
three year vesting period that is not subject to
performance conditions. If the options remain
unexercised after a period of 10 years from the date of
grant, the options expire. Options are normally
forfeited if the employee leaves the Group before the
options vest. In accordance with IFRS 2 ‘Share-based
Payment’ the fair value of equity-settled share-based
payments to employees is determined at the date of
grant and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period based on the Group’s estimate of
options that will eventually vest. Fair value is
calculated using a Binomial pricing model.

Aggregate emoluments disclosed above do not
include any amounts for the value of options to
acquire ordinary shares in the Company granted to or
held by the Directors. Details of options for Directors
who served during the year are as follows:

18 31 Date from
October December Exercise which Expiry

Scheme 2010* Granted Exercised 2010 price (p)** exercisable date

Executive Director

R P Lowes 2005 300,000 - - 300,000 95 03/01/2009 03/01/2016

R P Lowes 2005 300,000 - - 300,000 67 20/04/2012 20/04/2019

* Date of appointment

** Price after modification (see note 34)

This report was approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2011and signed on its behalf by

J D HAMBRO
22 March 2011
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Financial Calendar

2011

23 March
Preliminary Announcement

27 April
Ex Dividend Date

3 May
Record Date

7 June
Annual General Meeting

25 May
Posting Dividend

26 May
Dividend Payable
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